Public Document Pack

::I Sandwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Agenda

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny
Board

Monday 25 March 2024 at 6.00 pm
in the Council Chamber - Sandwell Council House, Oldbury
1 Apologies for Absence 5-6
To receive any apologies for absence.
2 Declarations of Interest 7-8

Members to declare any interests in matters to be
discussed at the meeting.

3 Minutes 9-20

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8
January 2024 as a correct record.

4 Urgent Additional Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional
items of business to be considered as a matter of
urgency.

5 Sandwell Children's Trust Performance Update 21-26

To consider the Sandwell Children’s Trust
Performance Update.

it 009090 ¢

Page 1



6 Residential Sufficiency and Audit of Planning 27 - 36
Applications for Children's Homes

To consider Residential Sufficiency and Audit of
Planning Applications for Children's Homes.

7 Corporate Parenting Board 12-Month Update 37 -50

To consider the Corporate Parenting Board 12-
Month Update.

8 Sandwell Children's Safeguarding Partnership 51-94
Annual Report 2022/23

To consider Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding
Partnership Annual Report 2022/23.

9 Tracking and Monitoring of Scrutiny 95-104
Recommendations

To consider the Tracking and Monitoring of
Scrutiny Recommendations

Shokat Lal

Chief Executive
Sandwell Council House
Freeth Street

Oldbury

West Midlands

Distribution

Councillor Hinchliff (Chair)

Councillors Chambers, Allcock, Ashraf, Choudhry, Fitzgerald, Hemingway,
Mayo, Pall, Uddin and Weston

Barrie Scott - Church of England diocese representative;

Carmel Hinton - Roman Catholic Archdiocese representative.

Contact: democratic services@sandwell.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk

Information about meetings in Sandwell

I3 B § & &

+ )

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk).

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit.

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen
to the discussion.

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be
treated as private and confidential. It is your responsibility to
ensure that any such reports are kept secure. After the
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure
way.

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and
further information will be provided.

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording
or reporting during the public session of the meeting. When
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting — please
ensure they are set to silent.

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit
apologies by contacting Democratic Services
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk)

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings,
councillor details and more are available from our website

Page 3


mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

Page 4



Agenda ltem 1

.2 Sandwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny

Board

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence from the members of the Committee.

b

s

009000 *
Page 5 G



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

.2 Sandwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny

Board

Declarations of Interest

Members to declare any interests in matters to be discussed at the meeting.

b

s

009000 *
Page 7 G



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

::I Sandwell

Metropolitan Borough Council

Minutes of

Children's Services and Education Scrutiny
Board

Monday 8 January 2024 at 6.00pm
in the Council Chamber, Sandwell Council House, Oldbury

Present: Councillor Hinchliff (Chair);
Councillors Mayo, Pall, Uddin and Weston.
Barrie Scott Co-opted Member - Church of England dioceses
of Birmingham and Lichfield Representative and Yvonne
Ologbo - Parent Governor representative.

Officers: Sally Giles — (Assistant Director - Strategic Partnerships and
Commissioning); Gillian Ming (Children’s Safeguarding
Partnership Business Manager); Samantha Harman (Holiday
Activity and Food Programme Manager); Claire Tate (Senior
Transformation Lead for Emotional Wellbeing and MH);
Emma Aspinal and Nicky Mountford (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Service) and Stephnie Hancock (Deputy
Democratic Services Manager).

1/24 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allcock,
Ashraf and Choudry.

2124 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

. 0006000 *
Page 9 OONETEAM



3/24

4/24

5/24

Minutes

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 13
November 2023 are approved as a correct record.

Additional Item of Business

There were no additional items of business to consider.

The Effectiveness of the Sandwell Children's Safeguarding
Partnership's Response to Serious Child Safeguarding
Incidents

The Board considered a report and presentation detailing the
operations of the Sandwell Children's Safeguarding Partnership in
relation to its response to serious child safeguarding incidents.

Introduced in 2018 the Local Safeguarding Partnerships gave equal
responsibility to three statutory agencies which included local
authorities, Police and the then Clinical Commissioning Groups
(now known as Integrated Commissioning Boards (ICBs)) for
agreeing the local multi-agency safeguarding arrangements.
Sandwell had added a fourth equal statutory partner, Sandwell
Children’s Trust, which delivered the children’s social care functions
on behalf of the Council. These four key agencies were known
locally as Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership (SCSP).

The four leading partners at SCSP were required to agree on ways
to co-ordinate their safeguarding functions; act as a strategic
leadership group in supporting and engaging other partners and
stakeholders; and implement local and national learning including
from serious child safeguarding incidents.

The SCSP focused on children’s welfare across Sandwell. It was
the ambition of the service that every child in Sandwell was able to
grow up in a safe, stable and loving home. The service worked to
provide high quality and effective support to any child who needed

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM




it. Individuals, agencies and organisations worked as a partnership
to ensure and promote the welfare of all children across Sandwell.

Local authorities, working with partner organisations and agencies,
had specific duties to safeguard and promote the welfare of all
children in their local authority area. The SCSP had specific duties
which included taking action if they believed a child had suffered or
was likely to suffer significant harm, and maintaining robust
processes where abuse or neglect was known or suspected to be a
causal factor, and if a child had died or been seriously harmed.

Since the inception of the SCSP on 1 April 2019, there had been 20
serious child safeguarding incidents across Sandwell which had
been scrutinised through the Rapid Review process. Of those 20
cases, 13 (65%) had met the criteria for further learning and
improvement activity, known as a Local Child Safeguarding Practice
Review (LCSPR). Across the 13 LCSPRs that had been initiated
over this period, the following themes had emerged:-

Emerging Theme Reoccurring in no.
of LCSPRs
Under 1s 7/13
Child from Black and minoritized ethnic 6/13
background
Mental ill health of parents/carers 10/13
Issue with information sharing/communication | 13/13
Neglect 10/13

Core safeguarding procedures/processes (e.g.| 10/13
application of thresholds, quality of
assessments, plan progression)

Substance/alcohol misuse (child or parent) 8/13
Domestic abuse 7/13

Requirements for undertaking rapid reviews and timescales for the
statutory review processes were set in guidance and monitored by
the National Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (NCSPRP).
All rapid reviews in Sandwell were submitted to the NCSPRP within
the prescribed 15 working days timescale, with the NCSPRP
concurring with the decision of the Sandwell Learning from Practice
Reviews (SLPR) Panel in 18 of the 20 serious incidents considered.

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM




Where (LCSPRs) were commissioned, they were to be completed
through to publication within 6 months, however this had not been
the case in Sandwell due to other competing processes such as
criminal and coroner’s investigations. The Sandwell Children's
Safeguarding Partnership (SCSP) had published 6 of the 13
LCSPRs in full. 3 LCSPRs were currently embargoed awaiting the
conclusions of parallel proceedings and 3 remained in progress.

The SCSP framework for undertaking this function was highly
regarded both regionally, and nationally where Sandwell had been
referenced as an area of good practice and cited by the NCSPR in
its annual report for 2020/21.

Following comments and questions from members of the Board, the
following responses were provided and issues highlighted:-

¢ the proportion of BME children coming into contact with the
Partnership was disproportionate in relation to Sandwell’'s
population and there was in some cases a connection to gun,
gang and knife crime and it was recognised that further work
was required to engage with communities;

e a Cultural Competence Framework and associated training
had been developed and regionally recognised;

¢ the effectiveness of the service was dependent on partnership
working, which could always improve;

e challenges in partnership working came from being unable to
share data and transfer data across different systems;

e services shared data across local authority boards where
appropriate;

e it was important that any lessons learned were imbedded into
practice and oversights and mistakes not repeated;

e across the Black Country Sandwell had the highest proportion
of child deaths;

e Sandwell worked to ensure lessons were learned from all
serious incidents.

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




6/24

The Board agreed that it would be beneficial to review the
effectiveness of the Sandwell Children's Safeguarding Partnership's
annually and this would be added to its work programme.

Child Friendly Sandwell

The Board considered a report outlining the proposal for the Council
to submit an expression of interest, and subsequent application, to
UNICEF to receive Child Friendly City (Borough) status. The
Cabinet was due to consider the proposal on 17 January 2024,

A Child Friendly City was a place that respected and promoted the
rights of children and young people and provided them with
opportunities to participate in its social, cultural, political and
economic life. Developing a Child Friendly Borough involved
engaging with children and young people as active citizens,
ensuring their safety and wellbeing, and creating inclusive and
accessible spaces and services for them. A Child Friendly Borough
was not only beneficial for children and young people, but also for
the whole community, as it fostered social cohesion, diversity,
sustainability, and innovation.

The guiding principles of building a Child Friendly Borough mirrored
the overarching principles of the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of the Child. The initiative required adoption of the following
principles for good governance:-

e equity and inclusion

e accountability and transparency

e public participation

e adaptability and sustainability

Delivering a Child Friendly Borough would support the Council to
deliver its commitments to equality and diversity and key elements
of both the Corporate Plan and the Improvement Plan.

Following comments and questions from members of the Board, the
following responses were provided and issues highlighted:-

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




7124

e work had already begun on ensuring that all service areas
were considering the impact on children and promoting a
wider culture change within the organisation following
feedback from other authorities that had sought Child Friendly
status;

e the process was long and likely to take between three and five
years from expression of interest to assessment and award of
the status;

e if the Cabinet approved the proposal, work would commence
on a task and finish group and building a partnership network
focused on project delivery;

¢ the project would require reaching out to children and young
people across the borough from all backgrounds;

The Board welcomed the proposal wholeheartedly and members
undertook to support the process by advocating for Child Friendly
Sandwell in everything they did.

Resolved that the proposal for Sandwell to seek Child
Friendly City (Borough) Status from the United Nations is
endorsed.

Health and Wellbeing of Students - Thrive Board Update

The Board received a report and presentation detailing the work of
the Sandwell Thrive Board in the development, implementation, and
review of its strategic plan to ensure that the emotional mental
health and wellbeing needs of children and young people in
Sandwell were met.

The Sandwell Thrive Board was established in November 2021 and
was responsible for the development, implementation, and review of
a strategic plan to ensure that the emotional mental health and well-
being needs of children and young people of Sandwell were met in
a timely, effective, and sustainable manner.

The Board had a strategic focus, with representation from health,
education, social care, police, schools and the voluntary sector. It

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM




was chaired by the Senior Children and Young Person Mental
Health Commissioner, Black Country Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust. Members worked within their respective governance and
monitoring processes of each organisation, to enable timely
development and delivery.

The Board noted the following key headlines:-

e the Thrive Board ensured multi-agency governance for the
Thrive Plan in Sandwell;

¢ the Thrive Board maintained a skilled and knowledgeable
multi-agency workforce through delivery of emotional
wellbeing and mental health training;

e the Thrive Board ensured that engagement with children,
young people and families continued through the SHAPE
Board and wider young people’s fora, and development areas;

e there was a development of a ‘whole system’ approach to
commissioning, identifying commissioning gaps and improving
transition;

¢ the service continued to address the surge in demand caused
by the Coronavirus pandemic;

e | Thrive Framework:-

o mapped all services within the framework to help
understand both commissioned and non-commissioned
services;

o a youth-specific iThrive Model and a co-produced video
to demonstrate the services and how to access them
had been developed;

o a Sandwell-specific directory for emotional wellbeing
and mental health services had been created,;

o events for practitioners to enhance their understanding
had been facilitated;

o facilitation of Q&A sessions with specialist leads, and
commissioned services had been held to improve
communication across partners;

o additional digital services had been commissioned to
support children who find it difficult to access
mainstream services;

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM




e Mental Health Support Teams:-

o Mental Health Support Team professional was provided
to 51 of 131 schools;

o a new focussed activity programme was in place
including LGBTQ+, holiday activities, and Advantage
mentoring programme with West Bromwich Albion FC,;

e School Nursing:-

o there continued to be interactive emotional health and
wellbeing roadshows in secondary schools across
Sandwell;

o drop-in sessions across secondary schools were held
monthly around the ‘Here for You; programme;

o there existed a confidential chat health text messaging
service for young people;

e Education — Attendance Service:-

o there were nine Attendance Service officers, across the
service who were assigned to 14 schools;

o there was a termly meeting to conduct an Attendance
‘Audit’;

o the service worked closely with Exploitation and Youth
Justice;

o arecent forum attended by over 30 partner agencies,
enabled school representatives to find agencies that
could support their students’ needs;

o a new panel had been established to discuss cases
where multiple interventions had been tried to improve
school attendance;

e Sandwell Emotional Wellbeing Programme — Phase 2:-

o a consultation was held as part of Phase 1 with schools
and young people and identified specific needs, of
children and young people which enabled a more
targeted approach;

o Phase 2 of the programme had been successfully
implemented from October 2022 to December 2023;

o atotal of 51 schools had accessed support throughout
Phase 2;

o since June 2021, over 2,600 children and young people
had been able to access support;

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM




o voluntary sector providers had accessed training to
adopt an approach to provide young people with
consistent emotional well-being language;

o the programme had been nationally recognised at the
Municipal Journal Awards 2023 for its partnership and
innovative approach to providing early intervention;

e |CB Health Inequalities funding:-

o funding was targeted to provide provision where gaps
were identified,

o focus was on young black boys, new to uk children,
unaccompanied asylum-seeking children aged 16-25,
and families;

o there had been a significant number of referrals for
focused areas and for providers in applying for
additional funding to support young people;

o there had been a recognition of the need for additional
assistance for the emotional wellbeing of headteachers;

e Children in Care and Care Leavers ‘Getting Help’ service:-

o there was a dedicated service for children and those
with care experience to access ‘getting help’;

o there were three focussed pilot programmes planned,
starting January 2024;

o there had been the development of a care leavers
specific emotional wellbeing resource,;

e Social, Emotional Competency Framework:-

o training needs of individuals had been identified for
those who worked with children and young people;

o the framework had been rolled out to service areas over
the last 12 months;

e Senior Mental Health Leads and Forums:-

o there had been 92 schools that had successfully trained
a School Mental Health Lead;

o termly peer support forums had been set up to provide a
supportive community;

e the Thrive Board had identified a number of challenges
including:-

o demand for emotional wellbeing and mental health
services had increased by 20%;

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




o funding was not recurrent, which impacted on the
provision of early intervention support for children in
need,

o there was a shortage of staff across key services
including School nursing, the voluntary sector, and
CAMHS;

o children and young people continued to miss school due
to mental health reasons and anxieties;

The Board was also updated on the going initiatives and
developments across the service:-

e Thrive Board multi-agency workshop:-

o a Sandwell Thrive strategy was under
development which would align the service with
the wider Black Country Health Foundation Trust
Transformation plan, SEND strategy, and Public
Health Better Mental Health Strategy;

o ongoing opportunities for joint commissioning of
services was under review;

e Education:-

o the service was collaborating with CAMHS SPA, in
instances where schools were not specified in the
referral, to progress the referral process quicker;

o the service was working to gather information from
schools regarding the reasons for modified
timetables, which would enable the attendance
team to provide support where necessary;

o where attendance had decreased due to specific
needs, active work with Inclusive Learning Service
would take place to discuss and handle cases
ensuring that the child was placed in the
appropriate educational provision;

e Emotional wellbeing programme:-

o the service was moving toward the implementation
of Phase 3 of the programme;

o there was an open grants round to support
community-based provision and deliver provision
based on identified needs and gaps;

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM

10



o there was an increased engagement by CAMHS
and Inclusive Learning Services to deliver
Sandwell’s Emotional Wellbeing Charter Mark with
voluntary providers;

e Mental Health Support Teams:-

o key developments were underway including
autism and mental health, ADHD and mental
health, staff wellbeing;

o the development of support mechanisms for
home-schooled children, young people at risk of
exclusion, and children exhibiting emotional-based
school non-attendance;

e School Nursing:-

o there was an increase drop-in services to
fortnightly;

o the service continued to promote the emotional
well-being roadshows to increase participation in
schools.

Following comments and questions from members of the Board, the
following responses were provided and issues highlighted:-

e issues around attendance continued post pandemic, a
significant number of families had disengaged with education
and work was underway to re-engage them, with dedicated
attendance officers in place;

¢ all schools had access to the attendance officers and the
service provided,;

e support was provided to families through targeted support
meetings and wider support through schools and other
agencies;

e the number of children and young people who where
electively home educated continued to increase and had
significantly increased since the pandemic;

e those who were electively home educated had access to
dedicated support from within the Council which provided
guidance and signposted resources;

006000 ¢

AAAHE

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM

11



8/24

9/24

e if a school was not accessing services to support the health
and wellbeing of children and young people the service
reached out to engage with them;

¢ staff and children and young people were engaged to
understand their views and how the service operated from
their perspective;

¢ the waiting lists for CAMHS support was around 21 weeks
after the first referral with a follow up meeting around 50
weeks later;

e those who required urgent CAMHS support had a 2 week
waiting time,

e there was an average of 400 referrals to CAMHS every month
and around 100 children and young people on the waiting list
at any given time;

e the stress on the CAMHS service was national and related to
the shortage of staff, limited funds available and numbers of
referrals;

e the reasoning behind CAMHS referrals were recorded and
monitored.

Scrutiny Action Tracker

The Board noted progress on actions and recommendations from
previous meetings.

Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan

The Board noted the Cabinet Forward Plan as it related to Children,
Young People and Education.

Meeting ended at 8.03pm

Contact: democratic services@sandwell.qgov.uk

006000 ¢

IARAAL

ONE COUNCIL

ONE TEAM

12


mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk

_ Agenda Iltem 5
=2 SaNnAwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Report to Children’s Services and Education

Scrutiny Board

25 March 2024

Subject: Sandwell Children’s Trust Performance
Update

Director: Interim Director of Children and Education,
Sally Giles

Contact Officer: | Sally Giles, Interim Director of Children
and Education

Sally giles@sandwell.gov.uk

Mandip S. Chahal, Senior Commissioning
Manager for Statutory Services

Mandipl chahal@sandwell.gov.uk

1 Recommendations

1.1 That the Scrutiny Board considers and comments on Sandwell
Children’s Trust performance update.

2 Reasons for Recommendations

2.1 Sandwell Children’s Trust is required to report to the Scrutiny Board
twice each year as part of the obligations set out in the contract between
the Council and the Trust.

2.2 The purpose of the item is to provide an update for consideration and
discussion regarding Sandwell Children’s Trust

Pa@ i

o)

)

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



mailto:Mandip1_chahal@sandwell.gov.uk

3

How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?

Best start in life for children and young people

Ensuring that children have the Best Start in Life is a key
driver for Sandwell Children’s Trust; ensuring that children
are safeguarded, protected and, when unable to live with
their parents, are effectively cared for.

SCT works with families, foster carers, schools, statutory and
voluntary providers to support the achievements of
vulnerable children and those in the care of the council

SCT works to ensure that children in the care of the Council
receive the support and opportunities that any parent would
give their child

4

4.1

4.2

Context and Key Issues

The contract with SCT is underpinned by comprehensive governance
arrangements. The contract requires that the Director of Children and
Education, together with council senior officers from finance and legal
services, and the Chief Executive of the Trust meet on at least a monthly
basis to consider performance and operational matters, this occurs at the
Operational Partnership Board meeting. In addition, each quarter, the
Lead Member for Children’s Services and the Chief Executive meet with
the Chair of the SCT Board and the Chief Executive of SCT and DCS, at
a Strategic Partnership Board.

The contract with the Trust specifies that representatives of the Trust
should attend Council meetings when reasonably requested, specifically
referencing attendance twice a year at the Children's Services and
Education Scrutiny Board and at the Budget and Corporate Scrutiny
Management Board if requested.

g

006000 *

Page ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The contract requires SCT to provide regular performance updates for
consideration by the Operational Partnership Board, the Strategic
Partnership Board and then by the Cabinet.

Since April 2018 the Trust has been the subject of seven monitoring visits
from Ofsted as well as a focussed visit, three inspection visits of the
fostering service, a full inspection under the Ofsted's framework and
guidance for inspecting local authority services for children (ILACS) in
May 2022, this inspection included children’s services across the Council
and partners, an inspection of adoption services in December 2022 and
was part of the Local Area SEND Inspection that took place in July 2023.

The judgement following the inspection undertaken in May 2022 was one
of ‘requires improvement to be good’. When coupled with the judgements
of ‘good’ received for both the fostering service (Aug 2021) and adoption
service (Dec 2022) shows a trajectory of service improvement. In addition,
the Youth Justice Service was inspected by HMI of Probation in
November 2018, with a ‘Good’ rated outcome.

The Contract between the Council and Sandwell Children’s Trust includes
a suite of 15 Key Performance Indicators against which SCT are required
to report monthly. Since Sept 2023 only one KPI has been in the
performance failure zone, for a period of one month. There are currently
no KPIs in the performance failure zone.

The Council and SCT have agreed a new set of KPIs, that will be effective
from the 01 April 2024. These will be reported to the Operational
Partnership Board monthly.

The 2023/24 financial performance is being measured against the agreed
2023/24 Contract Sum. Cabinet approved the contract sum, £74.475m for
2023/24 which was an increase of £2.5m or approximately 3.5%
compared with 2022/23.

k3
J -
i A
o ,‘ A

0000 ¢
Pa




4.9

4.10

At the end of Q3 SCT projected a year end deficit of £3.63m against the
Contract Sum; in real terms this is an overspend of £4.37m as there was
an expectation for them to achieve a surplus of £742k by the end of the
year. This is against a national backdrop of significant increases in cost
and availability of placements.

The average cost of a residential placement has risen from £5,225 in
2022/23 to £6,075 2023/24 year to date, an increase of 16.26%. Based on
there being 62 children in residential care that equates to almost £2.75m
of additional cost solely due to the increasing cost of residential care.

4.11 There is a national issue in respect of the availability of suitable

4.10

4.11

placements for children who have more complex needs. In February 2024
the ADCS President released a statement that articulated this. He said
‘Local authorities face many challenges when finding a home for a child,
particularly as we are seeing the emergence of more solo or low
occupancy homes, meaning that need continues to outstrip supply. The
uneven distribution of homes across the country is an added challenge
with homes frequently opening up where housing is cheaper not where
they’re needed most. There can also be an unwillingness of some
providers to take children with any level of complexity, or increasingly
serving immediate or inappropriate notice periods, for fear of the impact
on their Ofsted rating. Local authorities increasingly can pay tens of
thousands of pounds per week for places, yet providers can choose which
children to accept and at what cost.’

In March 2023 the number of Sandwell children placed in residential care
was 49; since then the number has increased to 62, as of December
2023. SCT are projecting an overspend on placements, against what they
had budgeted of £5.91m. Despite the increase overall in the number of
children in residential placement there are still fewer in residential care in
comparisons to the national average.

In July 2023 Cabinet agreed a package of financial incentives to improve

the recruitment and retention of social workers. This is collectively known
as the Sandwell Deal.

006000 *

g

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




4.12 Since Dec 2022 there has been an improvement in the balance of agency

5.1

6

to permanent social workers, with agency workers now accounting for
under 20% of the total social worker cohort. In addition to there being a
better balance, there are also fewer vacancies. Over the last quarter the
number of vacancies has fallen by just over 5% to an all-time low

Alternative Options

At its meeting on 19 October 2016, Cabinet was advised of the
Government’s Statutory Direction (under Section 479A of the Education
Act 1996) to set up a new arrangement in the form of a children’s trust to
deliver children’s social care services. As a result, Sandwell Children’s
Trust started operating on 1st April 2018. The Service Delivery Agreement
includes a contractual requirement to attend Children and Education
scrutiny twice per year. Any alternative to the current arrangement must
be agreed by both the Council and the Trust and go through a formal
contact variation process.

Implications

Resources: | The Council agreed a contract sum for 2023/24 of

£74.475m to deliver the Council’s statutory responsibilities
for children’s social care and to provide targeted early help
services. In addition to this, further sums have been
provided to SCT in year to cover the cost of high cost
agency workers, the pay award and the Sandwell Deal.
The Contract Sum amount that SCT receives is agreed
annually in line with mechanisms set out in the Service
Delivery Contract.

Legal and The Service Delivery Contract between the Council and
Governance: | SCT is performance managed via a monthly Operational

Partnership Board, a quarterly Strategic Partnership Board,
and SCT is required to attend up to two Children’s Scrutiny
Board meetings and a Budget Scrutiny meeting each year.
There is a partnership Improvement Board independently

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




chaired by a DfE appointed consultant. Additionally, the
Trust is required to submit its Annual Review to the Council.

Risk:

The Council’s strategic risk register identifies no red risks
relevant to this report. Following the inspection in May 2022
and the improved Ofsted judgement the previous red risk
was moved to amber. This risk is regularly monitored and
reported to the Council’s Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee.

Equality:

An Equality Impact Assessment screening is not required
for this report. However, the improvement in children’s
services will have a positive effect on the lives of vulnerable
children, young people and families in Sandwell, including
those with protected characteristics.

Health and
Wellbeing:

SCT continues to support children and families in Sandwell
and as the quality of service that they deliver improves so
does the impact they have on improving the health and
wellbeing of children and families.

Social Value

SCT supports children to achieve, feel safe, be supported
and access opportunities. SCT supports care leavers to
access education, employment and training. Having strong
governance and oversight supports SCT to achieve service
improvement and better support children and families in
Sandwell.

Climate There is no direct climate change impact associated with
change this report.
Corporate Ensuring that SCT continues on its improvement journey
Parenting will support the Council in delivering its corporate parenting
responsibilities.
7. Appendices
None
8. Background Papers
None
.'l. A \'
P

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




_ Agenda Iltem 6
=2 SaNnAwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Report to Children’s Services and Education

Scrutiny Board

25 March 2024

Subject: Residential Sufficiency and Audit of Planning
Applications for Children’s Homes

Director: Interim Director of Children and Education,
Sally Giles

Contact Officer: Interim Director of Children and Education,
Sally Giles

Sally _qgiles@sandwell.gov.uk

Mandip S. Chahal, Senior Commissioning
Manager for Statutory Services

Mandipl chahal@sandwell.gov.uk

1 Recommendations

1.1 That the Scrutiny Board considers and comments on the issue of
residential sufficiency and reviews recent planning applications for
children’s homes in this context.

2 Reasons for Recommendations

2.1 Budget and Corporate Scrutiny Management Board requested that a
report be presented to Children’s Services and Education Scrutiny
providing details on planning decisions in respect of children’s homes.

00000 °

Pa@ iR

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



mailto:Mandip1_chahal@sandwell.gov.uk

3

How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?

Best start in life for children and young people

Ensuring that children that children who are in the care of the
Council have access to high quality residential care provision
within Sandwell.

4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

g

r)‘ "

Context and Key Issues

There are currently 19 registered children’s homes in Sandwell ranging
in size from single occupancy to 4 bed homes. Nine of these homes
opened over the last two years with three others closing over the same
period.

One home is rated as outstanding, 12 are rated as good, three as
requiring improvement, one as inadequate and two are yet to be
inspected. Assuming an average home size of 3 beds it would suggest
there are 57 residential placements available in Sandwell.

In 2022 the Competition and Markets Authority undertook a market
study into children’s social care provision. They found there is a
shortage of appropriate places in children’s homes. This shortage of
places has driven up prices and the study found that private sector
investors appear to be making higher profits in England and Wales
than would expect in a well-functioning and competitive market.

There is in addition a national issue in respect of the availability of
suitable placements for children who have more complex needs. In
February 2024 the ADCS President released a statement that
articulated this, commenting that ‘Local authorities face many
challenges when finding a home for a child, particularly as we are

A
" 4
I |

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




4.5

4.6

4.7

1 4

seeing the emergence of more solo or low occupancy homes, meaning
that need continues to outstrip supply. The uneven distribution of
homes across the country is an added challenge with homes frequently
opening up where housing is cheaper not where they’re needed most.
There can also be an unwillingness of some providers to take children
with any level of complexity, or increasingly serving immediate or
inappropriate notice periods, for fear of the impact on their Ofsted
rating. Local authorities increasingly can pay tens of thousands of
pounds per week for places, yet providers can choose which children to
accept and at what cost.’

There has been a 67% increase in the number of children living in
residential placements (secure, children’s homes and semi-
independent living) since 2016. With 14,580 living in residential
settings in 2023.

While demand for placements has increased, the number of
children’s home placements has not increased at the same rate.
Between 2016-2021 there was an increase of 4,110 children in
residential settings while the number of places increased by 1,974.
This has meant that where there was spare capacity previously,
which allowed matching of children’s needs, this is no longer the
case.

Sandwell currently has 62 children placed in residential care of these 6
are placed in homes in Sandwell. The preference is for children who
are in our care to be placed in Sandwell, so they are better able to
access services and support networks, however for some children due
to their specific needs this is not possible.

b
£

0000 ¢
Pa




4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Over the last 12 months the average cost of a residential placement
has risen by around £850 per week per child. Based on there currently
being 62 children in residential care that equates to almost £2.75m of
additional cost.

As of Dec 2023, approximately 7.5% of children in care in Sandwell
were placed in residential care, this is significantly lower than the
national average which sits at 11%. This equates to around 30 fewer
children in residential care when compared to the national average rate.

Sandwell Council does not currently operate any children’s homes, with
the last Council operated home closing in 2014 following successive
inadequate inspection judgements.

The Council, in partnership with Sandwell Children’s Trust, is
undertaking a feasibility study on opening ‘internal’ children’s homes.
This would be a home that is in Sandwell and solely available for the
use of the Council/SCT.

When a provider wants to open a children’s home in Sandwell they are
required to apply for planning permission or seek a Lawful
Development Certificate.

Not all cases of developing children’s homes will necessitate planning
permission. A provider can seek to obtain a Lawful Development
Certificate (LDC) to confirm that the existing use of a building is lawful
for planning purposes or that the proposal does not require planning
permission.

\'9

0000 ¢
Pa




4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

g

Nigper @

In 2023, 11 planning applications to open children’s homes were
received by the Council, of these 11 applications two were approved. In
addition to these, eight applications for LDC’s were received of which,
five were approved.

There can be stigma associated with children’s homes, much of it is
based on a lack of understanding of how modern children’s homes
operate, how they are regulated, and the avenues open to residents to
complain if there are issues with a local home. As with all planning
applications the Council is required to consult with neighbours, in some
cases this can lead to local campaigns to oppose planning approval.

When assessing an application for a children’s homes the Council has
to consider the impact on the amenity of nearby occupiers. Relevant
factors will include the movements to and from the premises associated
with such a use, including shift patterns, the need for visitors on a
regular basis (including the emergency services).

If a planning application is submitted then generally, if the premises in
guestion provides for sufficient parking, outdoor space and the amenity
effects on neighbouring dwellings are capable of being mitigated, it is
the case that these developments would normally be appropriate uses,
in planning terms, in residential areas.

Where applications for children’s homes have been refused, they are
generally refused on the basis of:

i.  The intensity of the use would be contrary to policy SAD H4 of
Sandwell's Site Allocations and Delivery Development Plan
Document; as the proposed use would be unsuited to the
immediate area due to the impact of increased comings and
goings and resultant disturbance to residential amenity.

006000 *

Page ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

1

g

i A

ii.  The proposal would have a detrimental impact on highway
safety and the convenience of other highway users due to the
proposal having insufficient parking within the curtilage of the
development; contrary to paragraph 130 of the National
Planning Policy Framework which requires development to
function well and add to the overall quality of the area.

When an application is refused the applicant is given clear reasons for
the refusal and they can appeal the decision.

The planning team will routinely consult with both public health and
highways when a planning application is received. Thought is currently
being given as to who else should be routinely consulted so that any
decision is made with due consideration of the local area and possible
future residents who may be cared for e.g. children’s services, police.

A leaflet is being produced, that will be shared with members, the gives
an overview of what a children’s home is and how they operate so, if
residents do approach local Councillors when an application is received
they are able to share this with them.

Sandwell Children’s Trust has been working to build relationships with
local providers to improve access to local beds for Sandwell Children.
There is a residential provider forum, that brings together homes
providers, registered managers and SCT staff. This forum is used to
engage with providers, share relevant information with them about local
services and give them an idea of upcoming placement demand.

Information on planning applications is publicly available on the

Council’s website, when an application to open a children’s home is
approved Sandwell Children’s Trust will be notified and they can then

0000 ¢
Pa

\‘Q

¥




5

5.1

5.2

6

open discussions with providers to plan for when their home opens for
the benefit of Sandwell children..

Alternative Options

Children in the care of the Council can be accommodated in a several
ways e.g. foster care, at home under supervision and residential care.
Accommodation should be based on their needs but is also reliant on the
availability of the type of accommodation required. Where a child needs to
be accommodated to safeguard them based on their needs the Council is
required to do so, this function is discharged by Sandwell Children’s Trust
under the Service Delivery Contract in place for the provision of social
care.

There is a legal requirement to seek planning approval when a new
building is to be erected, a major change is proposed that falls outside of
permitted development or there is to be a change of use of the building
that means it will change category e.g. move from being a Dwelling House
(C3) to a residential institution (C2). There are no alternative options for
consideration.

Implications

Resources: | The planning fees are set by Government and anyone

wanting to submit an application must pay these. Applicants
are also able to avail themselves of pre-application advice,
at a cost, which will help them to consider the
appropriateness of their application and things they may
wish to consider.

The Contract Sum amount that SCT receives is agreed
annually in line with mechanisms set out in the Service

,)f. 3
‘ -
7

006000 *

P age ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




Delivery Contract included within this is the budget for
residential placements.

Legal and

Governance:

Sandwell Children’s Trust delivers the Council’s statutory
responsibilities for children’s social care, this includes the
provision of care placements for children and young people
based on their needs.

There is a legal requirement to seek planning approval
when a new building is to be erected, a major change is
proposed that falls outside of permitted development or
there is to be a change of use of the building that means it
will change category e.g. move from being a Dwelling
House (C3) to a residential institution (C2)

Risk:

There is a risk of challenge when the Council makes a
determination in respect of a planning application.
Applicants can appeal decisions and if successful a
planning decision made by the Council can be overturned.

Not having sufficient local provision means children and
young people that require residential placements are placed
at a distance from Sandwell. Placing children outside of
Sandwell can lead to increased costs i.e. the cost of
visiting, arranging contact and not being able to access
services that are universally available to Sandwell
residents.

Equality:

An Equality Impact Assessment screening is not required
for this report.

Health and
Wellbeing:

There are no direct health and well-being impacts
associated with this report.

Social Value

There are no direct social value impacts associated with
this report.

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




Climate There is no direct climate change impact associated with
change this report.

Corporate Ensuring that children, who are unable to live at home with
Parenting family, have safe and nurturing home sits within collective

responsibility of the council, elected members, employees,
and partner agencies, as corporate parents.

7. Appendices
None
8. Background Papers

None

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda ltem 7
=2 SaNnAwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Report to Children’s Services and Education

Scrutiny Board

25 March 2024

Subject: Corporate Parenting Board 12-Month Update
Director: Interim Director of Children and Education,
Sally Giles

Director of Quality & Performance
Teodora Bot

Contact Officer: Corporate Parenting Project Officer
Rosa Da Silva

Rosa_ DaSilva@sandwell.gov.uk

1 Recommendation

1.1 That the Board considers and comments on the developments made by
the Corporate Parenting Board.

2 Reasons for Recommendations
2.1 The purpose of the report is to provide a 12-month update for

consideration regarding how services are supporting Sandwell children
in care and care experienced young people.

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?

Best start in life for children and young people
:j;"'-/' Corporate Parenting aims to give children in our care the

- best possible beginning in life and experiences by providing
them with opportunities to fulfil their potential. This involves
making sure that all children in our care, who consider
Sandwell their “Corporate Parents,” grow up in stable homes,
receive good quality care and have their needs prioritised
and promoted. Supporting our young people as they
transition into adulthood, through provision of services and
assistance to help them thrive, and become independent,
resilient young adults.

700000

Pae ik

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



mailto:Rosa_DaSilva@sandwell.gov.uk

Context
Corporate Parenting Board (CPB) is co-chaired by the Elected Cabinet

Member Councillor for Children and Education Services, and the Chairs
of the Voice Of Sandwell (VOS - forum for 11-18-year old) and Forum for
Independent Young Adults (FIYA - forum for 18-25 year old). This
arrangement is in place to ensure the focus remains on key areas
affecting our children in care and care experienced young people and
provides them the opportunity to participate, influence and co-produce
the delivery of services.

The Children & Social Care Act 2017 sets out 7 Corporate Parenting
principles which are guidelines that Local Authorities and partners follow
when providing services to children in care and care experienced young
people: The 7 Corporate Parenting Principle

The Board has representation from Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council (SMBC), Sandwell Children’s Trust (SCT), Education, Skills,
Employment and Training, Housing, Social Care, Foster Carers, children
and young people, NHS/ICB, West Midlands Police, Department for
Work and Pensions (DWP) and Elected Members including the Leader
of the opposition.

The Strategic Corporate Parenting Group (SCPG) is formed by Board
officers and multiagency partners. Its purpose is to monitor, review, and
address key areas affecting children and young people in the care of
Sandwell Local Authority.

Focused areas include:

. The child and young person’s voice
. Education

. Skills, Employments and Training

. Physical Health

. Emotional, Wellbeing and Mental health
. Access to Services

. Safeguarding, Fostering and Stability

. Preparation for adulthood.

E \"

0000 ¢
Pa



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/applying-corporate-parenting-principles-to-looked-after-children-and-care-leavers

5.2

J

k3
A

During the reporting period, the Board has identified 5 key priorities:

. The education, employment and training of care experienced
young people, age 19 years +
. Homes’ sufficiency: the development and implementation of Foster

Friendly Sandwell programme to aid with the recruitment and
retention of highly skilled and able foster carers for our children in
care; homes’ stability

. Physical, emotional wellbeing and mental health provisions to
support our children in care and care experienced young adults

. Access to Services: Local offer

. Enable elected members and partners to have a better

understanding of their service areas and provide effective change.

What Is Working Well?
Governance and Development to the Board

In April 2023, the Local Government Association (LGA) and SMBC
collaborated to provide Corporate Parenting training to Cabinet
members, Elected members, and the CPB members. As a result, the
CPB decided to revise its terms of reference to enhance governance,
ensure appropriate partners’ presence, and improve its effectiveness.

The updated terms of reference were reviewed and approved by the
CPB and SCPG. In May 2023, the Annual Council officially endorsed
the new terms of reference and as a result the CPB now meets every 10
weeks.

The Council Impact Assessment

In December 2022, the LGA facilitated Corporate Parenting training for
the CPB. The training focused on identifying what the Board had in place
to support Sandwell children in care, and care experienced young
people and what further support can be put in place to raise the profile of
Corporate Parenting in Sandwell.

In March 2023, SMBC Democratic Services confirmed that all report

templates include Corporate Parenting as part of the implications

1 A
.« &5

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




5.3

5.4

section. Report authors are now required to consider Corporate
Parenting when writing reports that involve changes or decisions
affecting children in care or care experienced young people.

Assistant Directors Workshop and Corporate Business Planning
Sessions

Assistant Directors met during Corporate Parenting Week in June 2023 to
discuss their role and how they can contribute towards the Corporate
Parenting agenda. Subsequently, two additional meetings were organised
to explore how services can support children in care and care experienced
young people. The participation of young people who shared their
personal journey had a significant impact. As a result, Corporate
Parenting has now been identified as a key priority within the corporate
business planning process.

In November 2023, Corporate Parenting presented at three business
planning sessions. The aim was to encourage Assistant Directors to
consider care experienced young people in their new corporate business
plans.  This involved identifying potential support through work
experience, employment opportunities, and employment mentoring.

Corporate Parenting Week 2023

The first annual Sandwell Corporate Parenting Week took place from 12
June - 16 June 2023. As a partnership, SMBC, SCT, Black Country NHS
Foundation and CAHMS colleagues celebrated the week to:

» Raise the profile of Corporate Parenting across partnerships.

» Ensure a clear understanding of what it means to be a Corporate
Parent.

« Enable individuals to develop the confidence to be more effective
Corporate Parents.

During the week, over 600 colleagues participated in a live virtual event
led by a care-experienced young person who shared their journey
through the care system. The week included webinars on trauma-
informed care, Corporate Parenting training sessions for newly Elected
Members, a workshop on developing a new Corporate Parenting

g

Nigper @

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




5.5

5.6

k3
l -

U /'3

strategy, health awareness initiatives, education-focused discussions,
and employment support.

Feedback throughout the week was positive, and there was clear
learning across the Council, SCT, and partners. As a result, key actions
have been identified for the next 12 months. Moving forward, Corporate
Parenting Week will be held annually to continue raising awareness.

Care Experienced Week

The week took place between 25th October to 1st November 2023, it
included various activities for young people. The Care Experienced Young
People Awards Ceremony highlighted the ongoing work required in areas
of apprenticeships, higher education, accommodation, and combating
stigma associated with children in care and care experienced young
people.

Corporate Parenting Board Deep Dives

Following a self-evaluation, the Board agreed an annual programme of
meetings based on thematic deep dives. In October 2022, the first deep
dive focused on the Physical , Emotional and Wellbeing, Mental Health
and Life Story Work for children in our care. Children in Care and care
experienced young people shared feedback through VOS and FIYA.
Their concerns included medical, dental, and optician’s prescription
costs, access to their files to gain an understanding of their health
history, and whether there is a fast-track process for children in care to
access CAMHS.

The second deep dive explored into Education, Skills, Employment and
Training. VOS and FIYA led the meeting, emphasising the need for
better support tailored to individual children and young people. Young
people face challenges when aiming to attend university, particularly
related to the costs and emotional support required.

The Board acknowledged the strength and commitment Sandwell Virtual
School have for our children and young people. It continues to provide
ongoing support to ensure access to quality education and ensure each
child can achieve their full potential. 88% of children in care attend an
education setting that is ‘good/outstanding’ this is an increase of 8%

0000 ¢
Pa

[' 1




since 2020. Attendance of Sandwell children in care is at 93.96% which
is higher than all children nationally (92.5% Autumn 2023). The
percentage of children achieving 4+ in English and Maths has doubled
since 2017 to 32% in 2023.

To ensure that a child’s education is not disrupted, any required school
moves must seek approval from Sandwell Childrens Trust Directors. It is
identified that Early Years (EYS), good level of development (GLD) fell
by 5%, whilst this pertained to 1 child. Of the 36 children in EYS 38%
have SEND support or an EHCP.

The Board has requested a benchmark against other Local Authorities to
identify how it can increase the support and provide an outstanding offer
to children and young people.

The Skills, Employment and Training Team focussed on addressing the
level of young people not in education, employment and training (NEET)
19-21 years old. Whilst there is an emphasis on apprenticeships, work
experience placements and supporting young people into education,
employment and training (EET), there has only been a 1.8% increase in
young people entering into formal education, employment or training
since March 2023, this is slower than expected. It is highlighted that
young people face barriers which impact their progress to enter
employment. Young people identified social anxiety, PTSD, mental
health and emotional wellbeing, placement stability and having limited
social networks as being the main reasons to why they struggle.

In March 2023, the Board focussed on Stability and Safeguarding: The
Journey of the Child. SCT presentation covered:

« Children in care services and care leaving service

* Independent Reviewing Officers

» Fostering Service

« Participation Service

The presentation highlighted the importance of placement stability, the
need for additional foster care placements, support to maintain
placements when they are at risk of disruptions, and the importance of

0000 ¢
Pa

.»J"' \
P

1 A
.« &5




S.7

,)f- 3
‘ -
/)

trusting relationships being developed between children, carers and the
team around the child.

It was acknowledged that when children enter care, they experience loss
and suffer some form of trauma, and appropriate access to timely
emotional well-being support services is absolutely vital.

In response to the recognised need for services that support the
emotional wellbeing of children in our care, SCPG pursued the initiative
to create and develop an Emotional and Wellbeing Hub specifically for
children who are currently in or have been in our care. This initiative led
to the launch of the new Emotional Wellbeing Hub in January 2024,
funded by the SMBC. Starting as a pilot and pathfinder project, it aims to
offer support to children entering care, those in care, and care leavers by
providing specialist assessment and intervention. The service is
designed to complement and enhance the bespoke CAHMS provision
that is already available to these children. The Hub is delivered by
Barnardo’s, being hosted and managed by the Trust. It is worth noting
that the Pilot is funded until March 2025 and if successful, further
consideration will need to be given in relation to the funding streams.

Voice of Children and Young People

VOS and FIYA forums continue to provide reports to CPB on work they
undertake. During 2023 this included participation in Holiday Activities
(Malt House Stables, Drayton Manor, barbeque afternoon, weekly sports
sessions and employability workshops) which were funded by the HAF
programme, parent consultations, drop-in sessions, presenting at SCT's
AGM, developing and supporting the NHS redesign and House Project,
FIYA Awards, and Care Leavers Week.

On 21 February 2024, Children and Education Services Scrutiny Board
met with Sandwell VOS and FIYA for an engagement session. The
session focused on children in care and young people presented what
positive work is in place for them and what they hope will change in the
future.

!} 000000 *
Pa




5.8

5.9

6.2

Children and young people were asked to identify areas they feel need
more attention to improve their development and care experiences which
include:
» Protective characteristics
« Policies are developed with children and young people at the
centre
« Corporate parents to use loving language
« Being treated as children first and children in care second — they
are children first.

Christmas Gifts

In December 2023, at the height of the cost of living crisis, SMBC, SCT
and the Black Country NHS contributed £2020 to ensure current care
experienced young people received a Christmas gift this holiday.

Webpages Update

Corporate Parenting intranet pages have been updated to provide
comprehensive information about Corporate Parenting:
https://intranet.sandwell.gov.uk/corporateparenting

What Are We Worried About?

Local Offer

In 2022, the West Midlands ADCS developed a blueprint for a Local
Offer aimed at care-experienced young people aged 16-25. Work has
progressed for Sandwell’s local offer, with some proposals being
implemented using the existing resources and reconfiguration of
services. However, several aspirations remain unachieved due to a
shortage of necessary resources.

+ Bridging the apprenticeship wage gap to the national living wage
* Anincrease to the care leavers university bursary

* Providing free eye tests and glasses

« Offering a birthday present and festival allowance

« Establishing a mentoring scheme

Not in Education, Employment and Training (NEET)

g

IS
h=2 «‘—..a‘

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



https://intranet.sandwell.gov.uk/corporateparenting

6.3

k3
l -

U /'3

While the NEET (Not in Education, Employment, or Training) figures
increased to 1.8% for 19-21-year olds with care experience in March 2023,
this continues to be a significant concern for the Board.

The Board conducted a review of the Not in Education, Employment, and
Training (NEET) strategy and action plan. The primary focus was on
identifying young people at risk, facilitating their transition to adulthood,
offering specialised support, enhancing post-16 education, and expanding
training and employment prospects. Additionally, ongoing efforts aim to
improve opportunities and boost the participation of young individuals in
education, employment, or training (EET).

Sufficiency of homes for our children in our care

It is well recognised that we are facing a national crisis regarding
placement sufficiency within children’s social care. The situation continues
to impact directly on children whose needs are not fully met whilst in care,
as well as the financial implications that arise because of insufficient
suitable provision within the care market. We know care planning prior to
care is critical and analysis tells us that children are entering care
appropriately. Positively, analysis of practice has shown that more
children are being prevented from entering care and as of April 2023, the
rate of entrants into care was 20.4 per 10,000. This is lower than statistical
neighbours (31.6), West Midlands (27) and England averages (26). There
IS more consistent and appropriate decision making when care is required,;
and for children in residential care, a more proactive approach is seeing
some children step down into foster care. There may be limitations due to
placement availability, but the commissioning and operational team are
actively trying to reintegrate children into family living where possible.
However, overwhelmingly the biggest factor is the lack of available and
appropriate care placements to meet children’s identified needs. This
impacts significantly on the finances required because in many situations,
there is no choice but to accept the only available placement, irrespective
of cost and whether it is a suitable match.

To this extent, in addition to the involvement through the regional and
regional forms, SMBC and SCT are working towards embarking on a

[' 1

006000 *

Page 4 ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




6.4

7.2

7.3

major project to - an integrated approach to care and engage partners and
other stakeholders to achieve Fostering Friendly status for Sandwell.

Sustainability of Funding — Emotional and Well being Hub

There is continued concern with regards to the absence of recurrent
funding to support the prevention emotional well-being, which is crucial
for providing consistent early intervention support for those children who
need it, but through the pilot programmes and evaluation of impact the
services have had it is hoped that any savings can support a reinvest
model.

Next Steps

Corporate Parenting Strategy

The Corporate Parenting Strategy 2024 — 2027 is currently undergoing a
refresh. Children, young people, and partners are co-producing this
strategy. The finalised version will be reviewed and approved in the next
financial year.

Local Offer

Cabinet Member for Children and Education Services, Clir Simon Hackett,
and Michael Jarrett (previous Director for Children and Education) have
led on efforts relating to corporate sponsorship as part of our social value
initiatives.

In February 2024, Michael Jarrett, met with UK Director and European
Director for Infosys’s UK to explore the possibility of their support for the
Sandwell Local Offer aimed at care-experienced young people. This
process will be continued by the Interim Director of Children and
Education Services, Sally Gilles

NEET

As already alluded to, the Skills, Employment and Training Team
presented a deep dive update into Not in Education, Employment and
Training (NEET) at CPB in January 2024. It was identified that Sandwell
youth unemployment is an issue affecting not only care experienced
Young people but also their peers. The team is working closely with
Elected Member for Children and Education Services to hold a Youth
Employment Summit in Summer 2024.

0000 ¢
Pa

-

5




7.4

Sandwell Social Value team continues to collaborate with local
businesses and organisation to identify opportunities for Care
Experienced Young People including Lovell and Sandwell Anchor
Network. All identified opportunities are shared with the Skills,
Employment and Training team who allocate it to a interested young
person.

Think Sandwell will continue to complete monthly drop-in sessions at
Metsec, this has been an opportunity to build relationships and
understand the needs of individuals and provide support to prepare them
for the world of work. Young people will also be able to access home
visits if they are unable to attend the drop-in sessions. Short training
courses have been utilised to build confidence in the workplace, become
work ready, identifying interests and these have proved successful with
1 care leaver accessing an apprenticeship following completion.

Board members will visit Coventry Local Authority to meet with lead
officers for Skills, Employment and Training team, the Participation team,
and Virtual School. This is part of a partnership collaboration prompted
by Coventry being identified as having an outstanding practices in the
following areas.

Following the Assistant Directors business planning workshops, they
have been asked to consider our care-experienced young people when
writing their new corporate business plans. The aim is to identify how
services could support our young people, whether this could be through
providing work experience, employment opportunities, and employment
mentoring.

Voice of Children and Young People

Children in care and care-experienced young people have identified their
focus areas for 2024, which include ensuring the continuation of HAF
funding, parent forum involvement, foster carer appreciation days, year-
end celebrations, and a Christmas party.

006000 *

ﬁ-||| ||?
Page 4 ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM

g

Nigper @




7.5

7.6

Mandatory E-Training

Corporate Parenting Mandatory E-training is currently being developed
and is due to be publish in the new financial year. Corporate Parenting
training will be delivered to the leadership team and all councillors during
Corporate Parenting week: Monday 10 — 14™ June 2024.

Protected Characteristics

The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care, led by Josh

McCallister, put forward two key recommendations aimed at improving

the well-being of individuals with care experience:

o The government should recognise care experience as a protected
characteristic.

o New laws should be enacted to extend corporate parenting
responsibilities to a broader range of public bodies and
organisations.

While the UK government has not yet approved care experience as a
protected characteristic, Local Authorities are taking action at a local
level. Sandwell aims to join the 78 other Authorities that have already
approved care experienced as a protected characteristic with this
process to be completed by June 2024.

Summary

The CPB acknowledges the progress made by the Council and partner
agencies over the past year. However, it is recognising areas for
improvement in supporting children in care and care experienced young
people.

While positive changes have been made, the CPB will continue to focus
on several key areas:

. NEET

. Health Assessments and Dental Care

. Preparation for Adulthood.

. Early Intervention for Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health

. Sufficiency of homes for our children in care

g

Nigper @

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




9

10

The Board has a clear plan for 2024, emphasising collaboration to meet
the needs of our children and care-experienced young people.

Implications

Resources: The nonrecurrent funding provides uncertainty and
instability of delivery services and the ability to plan
for long term programmes to make a sustained
impact.

Legal and n/a

Governance:

Risk: n/a

Equality: Implications for equality (all aspects and
characteristics) including how meeting Equality Duty,
equality impact assessments

Health and If the services are not provided, it could likely lead to

Wellbeing: negative effects on the health and wellbeing of our

communities.

Social Value: |n/a

Climate n/a

Change:

Corporate Without targeted service, Children in care and care
Parenting: leavers are more likely than their peers to have poor

life outcomes and struggle with their long-term
physical, mental health and emotional wellbeing.

Background Papers

Corporate Parenting Strategy 2020-2023

Corporate Parenting Annual Report 2021 — 2023

Protective characteristics Report by Terry Galloway

006000 *

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



file://///COR-C-NAS-01/home$/Rosa_DaSilva/Documents/SMBC%20-%20Corporate%20Parenting/Corporate%20Parenting/Strategic/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy%202020-2023.pdf
file:///C:/Users/Rosa_DaSilva/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/LT9KQIO1/Sandwell%20Corporate%20parenting%20Annual%20Report%2020212023-approvedbyfullcouncil.pdf
file://///COR-C-NAS-01/home$/Rosa_DaSilva/Documents/SMBC%20-%20Corporate%20Parenting/Final_14_06_23_Protected_Characteristics_Report.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda Iltem 8
=2 SaNnAwel

Metropolitan Borough Council

Report to Children’s Services and Education

Scrutiny Board

25 March 2024

Subject: Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership
Annual Report 2022/23
Director: Sally Giles

Interim Director of Children and Education
Contact Officer: Gillian Ming

Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership
Business Manager

gillian _ming@sandwellchildrenstrust.org

1 Recommendations

1.1 That the Scrutiny Board considers and notes the 2022/23 Sandwell
Children Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report.

2 Reasons for Recommendations

2.1 Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 introduced Local
Safeguarding Partnerships (LSPs) giving equal responsibilities to 3
statutory agencies (Local Authorities, Police and Integrated
Commissioning Boards - ICB’s) for agreeing and ensuring the local
multi-agency safeguarding arrangements. Sandwell have added a fourth
equal statutory partner, being Sandwell Children’s Trust who are the
providers for children’s targeted and social care services in the
Borough. These four key agencies are known locally and leads Sandwell
Children’s Safeguarding Partnership (SCSP).

2.2 To bring transparency for children, families and all practitioners about
the activity undertaken, the safeguarding partners are duty bound to
publish a report at least once in every 12-month period. The report must
set:

700000

Pae ik

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



mailto:gillian_ming@sandwellchildrenstrust.org

2.3

2.4

2.5

g

e SCSP’s summary of activities during 22/23, to include Child
Safeguarding Practice Reviews, and how effective these
arrangements have been in practice.

e The priorities for the reported period and what activities took place to
take forward these priorities.

e Evidence of the impact of the work of the safeguarding partners and
relevant agencies, including training and the impact on practice for
improved outcomes for children and families, from Early Help to
children in care and care leavers.

e Any resulting improvements from activities (including from Rapid
Reviews and Local or National Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews)

e The scrutiny arrangements in place and how successful they have
been to support the MASA

e The role, visibility and voice of children and families in the safeguarding
activities.

The attached annual report published by SCSP outlines the activities
undertaken in line with the requirements during 2022/23 and provides an
overview of the effectiveness of multi-agency safeguarding
arrangements in Sandwell during that period.

The report provides evidence of the impact of the work of the
safeguarding partners and relevant agencies and demonstrates where
increased attention and additional developmental activities have taken
place to areas identified for improvement and to strengthen multi agency
working to safeguard vulnerable children and families.

Throughout the annual report, SCSP are able to evidence the delivery of
the core functions, including training; monitoring outcomes for children
and families from early help to looked-after children and care leavers; a
record of decisions and actions taken by the partners during the year (or
planned to be taken) to implement the recommendations of any local
and national child safeguarding practice reviews, including any resulting
in improvements; and the ways in which partners have sought and
utilised feedback from children and families to inform their work and
influence service provision.

N #

006000 *

Page ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




3.1

How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan

The work of SCSP, and the annual report itself, provides a transparent
assessment of the performance and effectiveness of the local
safeguarding arrangements. This enables a holistic view in respect of
the Council’s Vision 2030 and in particular:

Best start in life for children and young people

Our children benefit from the best start in life and a high-
guality education throughout their school careers with
outstanding support from their teachers and families.

@ Strong resilient communities

Our communities are built on mutual respect and taking care
of each other, supported by all the agencies that ensure we
feel safe and protected in our homes and local
neighbourhoods.

4.1

4.2

4.3

J

b 2
oy

Context and Key Issues

The Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership (SCSP) was
established on 1 April 2019 as the local strategic body with shared and
equal duties placed on four named key agencies to ensure joined-up
arrangements are developed, and effective for all local agencies to work
together to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in
Sandwell.

The local Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements (MASA) was initially
developed and published in 2019 following full consultation with relevant
agencies, children and young people and is widely shared to ensure
safeguarding children in Sandwell is everyone’s responsibility and all
children have the opportunities to achieve their full potential as well as
for all children and families to receive services at the right time according
to their individual needs and in a co-ordinated way.

In compliance with the requirements for LSP, the SCSP have a
programme of scrutiny activities to continuously ‘test out’ the
effectiveness of the MASA and the work of the SCSP. This annual report
demonstrates the areas and themes scrutinised by the resident
Independent Scrutineer and includes areas identified for development

0000 ¢
Pa

1 A
.« &5




4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.12

.»J"' \
P

arising from the annual scrutiny activities including any actions relevant
to partner agencies.

Working Together 2018 encourages the Independent Scrutineer to
comment on the accuracy of LSP’s annual reports prior to publication.
This can also be seen in the final section of this year’s annual report.

The SCSP currently have an Independent Chair and the future of this
role is under review. It is intended for the outcome of this review to
inform the leadership arrangements as of April 2024.

The SCSP met on 6 occasions (bi-monthly) to manage the core and
progressing business, with a further 2 additional partnership
development events taking place during 22/23.

The current position

The SCSP have maintained its two substantive priority areas as: tackling
child neglect and exploitation with the additional area for focus on ‘early

help’ identified from the previous year and the progress made is included
in this annual report.

There continues to be a comprehensive partnership training programme
to ensure that the children’s workforce remain abreast of new national,
regional and local practice updates and receive effective and timely
learning and development opportunities.

The local arrangements for the review of child deaths, through the Child
Death Overview Panel (CDOP) sit within the auspices of the local
authorities Public Health and ICB’s and are monitored via the formation
of a Black Country CDOP. SCSP is represented as members within this
group with the SCSP receiving annual updates as is referenced in the
annual report by the SCSP.

Consultation

The Partnership has been widely consulted on the annual report which
was ratified by the Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership on 25
October 2023 and shared with other strategic boards to inform work
happening locally to support children and families. This includes the
member of the 5+ Boards as; Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB),

0000 ¢
Pa

1 A
.« &5




Sandwell Safeguarding Adults Board (SSAB), Domestic Abuse Strategic
Partnership (DASP), Sandwell Children’s Trust (SCT) Improvement
Boards and Safer Sandwell Partnership Police and Crime Board Meeting
(SSPPCB).

4.14 The annual report is published on the SCSP website and a copy was
sent to the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel, Department for
Education (DfE), Police & Crime Commissioner and the What Works
Centre for Children’s Social Care within seven days of being published.

Sustainability of Proposals

4.15 Areas for development or assurance relevant to each agency, are set
out in the Annual Report. The delivery of these actions continues to be
monitored, together with the impact on outcomes.

5 Implications

Resources: There are no specific financial implications arising
from this report.

The formulation of the annual report was met from
existing resources.

Legal and In accordance with Working Together 2018, a copy of
Governance: |the report has been sent to the Chief Executive of
Sandwell MBC, Chief Executive of Sandwell
Children’s Trust, Leader of the Council, Chair of
Children’s Services and Education Scrutiny Board,
Chair of the Health and Well-being Board and Police
and Crime Commissioner and the NHS Integrated
Care Board.

The report is also made publicly available on each of
the Safeguarding Partners respective websites.

Risk: There are no risk implications arising from this report.
Equality: The SCSP annual report is the responsibility of the
SCSP and is a summary and assessment of the work
of all partners in meeting the safeguarding agenda.
This report is for information only and the actions
contained within the Board’s plan will have their own
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) as required.

0000 ¢
Pa

k3
J -
i A
o ,‘ A




Health and Ensuring that partners work together to keep children
Wellbeing: safe underpins their right to enjoy health and
wellbeing.

Sharing intelligence and data about the prevalence of
safeguarding concerns provides opportunities to
intervene earlier to protect children from harm.

Social Value: | As a partnership our vision is for all children to be safe
at home and in their communities, where they are
loved, cared for, and have the stability to grow
healthily and to achieve their ambition.

Climate There are no specific climate change implications
Change: arising from this report.

Corporate N/A

Parenting:

6 Appendices

2022/23 Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report.

7. Background Papers

None.
¥ QL0 ¢
i f’ KK

Tlll ] |?
Pa = O ONE COUNCIL
! ONETEAM




Working Together to Safeguard Children
2022 -2023 Annual Report-

Demonstrating the inter-agency activities to safeguard
and promote the welfare of Sandwell’s children.

Sandwell Children’s

Safeguarding
K Partnership

- Why are my ﬁcedﬁ nekt being Met @ «
MM@QJA#H A SLQCEE&CQIES‘? ;__‘_.mpf_vy Z @@’-{@:5

I' #.-'-av 'ﬁﬁ
pnor;tguy ﬂE f}jﬂ o ;ﬁ 9@ P

=2 Childen on
e nzed plans oe

et ﬂw% | _' : i.;r?-'rl:'u{" - _,': I
""‘ /;ﬁ Ntmc-r wa. f‘*'ﬁ'res o 'qﬂﬁnﬁafet' 3 =
uitura.l tral (onSSsterc Y q o b o0l

’E =% 2 '
. - =

"“-..\‘_ "‘--"ﬁuu"‘*- \{?75‘ .- s ¢ . -
.n' .:m uaae ufklﬂ B I ] ; P

h?.u"q uﬁd\mw .I. “dh lllﬂ 'eﬁ !"‘"". : _.ll = —

Version Control
Mismber | Date | Document Author Reason
Vo1 [ Orchober 2023 "'?'?'E-h"l'i ArEU -“Zl.-'|l|'-:.||:-- Rispait




FOREWORD: LESLEY HAGGER, INDEPENDENT CHAIR, SANDWELL CHILDREN’S
SAFEGUARDING PARTNERSHIP.

Welcome to the Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding
Partnership’s Annual Report for the year April 2022 to
March 2023. In this report you will hear about the work
that has taken place to strengthen, improve and evidence
our joined-up and effective safeguarding practice; you will
see the results of the important work carried out by our
Independent Scrutineer; and you will also read about the
priorities for our future work.

Statutory safeguarding partners in Sandwell have
continued to work closely together with an ambition to
| | provide visible and significant leadership across the
Borough to safeguard Sandwell’s children and young people. The Partnership has continued to benefit from
representation and involvement from other relevant partners such as our schools, the voluntary and community
sector, and faith organisations, all of which are key providers of support to children, young people, and their
families.

Our two key priorities, neglect and exploitation, have continued to drive the work of the Partnership, with the
inclusion during the year of a third area of focus: Early Help.The development and publication of a robust quality
assurance framework during the year has helped the Partnership to deepen its understanding of safeguarding
activity in Sandwell and take actions to respond to those findings and improve our ways of working.

At the start of the year, we began to distribute a newsletter following each Partnership meeting, so that the widest
possible number of agencies and individuals can be kept in touch with the work of the Partnership. Feedback has
indicated that this has been a useful way of communicating key messages and securing feedback and involvement
from the widest range of practitioners and organisations. A range of other resources were published including a
new website for all practitioners, sandwellearlyhelp.info, an updated multi-agency child exploitation strategy, and
multi-agency ‘Was Not Brought’ guidance to support all practitioners working with children who may not be
attending health appointments, home visits or school.

May 2022 saw the Ofsted ILACS inspection in Sandwell. Whilst this is primarily an inspection of children’s social
care services, there were important messages for all agencies regarding the application of thresholds when
referring to children’s social care to ensure children and families receive the right service. As a result, the
Partnership published its updated Threshold Guidance in June 2022, which was supported by a series of workshops
to support agencies with their understanding and use of the guidance. Messaging was further strengthened later in
the year to reflect the shared responsibilities that all agencies have to keep children safe even once a Multi-Agency
Request Form has been submitted. However, this is an area that still needs significant improvement and will
continue to be a high priority of focus next year.

One of the most insightful meetings that took place during the year was the Take-Over Day, when young people
‘took-over’ the Partnership meeting. Young people told us about their concerns around gangs, knife crime, ‘what
next?’ after school/college, drug use and bullying in schools. A range of actions were progressed including the
Bullying Awareness training course for education staff that became over-subscribed as a result.

The Partnership has continued to engage with regional and national work, including having a better understanding
of equality, diversity, and inclusion in safeguarding with a view to addressing disproportionality and creating a
better understanding of the rich and diverse community that is Sandwell.

The biggest challenge in a report such as this is being able to demonstrate the difference that the Partnership’s
activities have made, and asking the question: are children safer as a result? There is a great deal of evidence in this
Annual Report, although the more questions we ask, the more we find that needs to be done, and in a nutshell that
is the core purpose of the Partnership — to ask the right questions, to bring analysis to the answers, and then
collectively to mak dgy gwents to the system to protect our children and young people. | hope that this

es’a

Annual Report provi comprehensive overview of child safeguarding in Sandwell and that you can see and
hare the commitment to continuous improvement.




CONTENTS PAGE

Section Title Page Number

1. Introduction What is Safeguarding Page 4
* Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership Structure Page 4
» SCSP Vision & Priorities for 22/23 Page 5

2. Sandwell’s Child Population Page 7

3. An Overview of Sandwell’s Child Population — Accessing and receiving
Multi-Agency Help and Support during 22/23: Page 8
* Vulnerable Children and Social Care Population in Sandwell Page 9

4. Leadership functions in driving the MASA during 22/23 Page 14
The Structural Arrangements delivering the safeguarding functions Page 14
Activities undertaken to deliver the SCSP MASA Page 14
Independent Chair Page 15
Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council Page 15
Integrated Care Board Page 16

5. Delivering the Core Functions during 22/23 Page 17
e Sandwell Learning from Practice and Review Page 17
* Quality of Practice, Performance and Assurance Page 19
* Learning and Development Page 20

6. Subgroups for Priority Area Page 23
e Tackling Neglect Page 23
e Child Exploitation Board Page 24
e Early Help Page 24

7. Safeguarding Reference Groups Page 27
e Community Safeguarding Page 27
» Sandwell Safeguarding Health Partnership Page 28

8. Scrutiny Activities during 22 -23 Page 30

9. Activities of Significance to the SCSP MASA during 22/23 Page 31
e Ofsted Inspection May 2022 Page 31
* SHAPE Takeover October 2022 Page 31

10. Summarising the work of SCSP during 22/23 Page 33

11. Improvement Activities and Direction of travel for 23/24 Page 35

12. Glossary of Terms Page 36

13. Independent Scrutiny of SCSP Annual Report 2022-23 Page 37

Page 59




1. INTRODUCTION

Local Children’s Safeguarding Partnerships (LCSPs) are in place in each local authority area having responsibility
for ensuring that children of all ages and abilities get the help, support and protection they need to keep them
safe from abuse and harm. The legislation which orders the existence of LCSPs stems from the Children and
Social Work Act 2017 which places a duty on key statutory agencies to work together with other agencies in the
local areas and agree local Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements (MASA) for the purposes of safeguarding
and promoting the welfare of children.

What is Safeguarding?

For the purposes of this report, the remit and focus for safeguarding is about the actions taken to promote the
welfare of children and protect them from harm. Safeguarding in Sandwell is everyone’s responsibility, and
every single person who comes into contact with children and families has a role to play.

Child Protection is part of safeguarding and refers to the activity undertaken to protect children suffering from,
or at risk of, significant harm (Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018).

From the above distinct areas mentioned, the SCSP describes the above to all partners as:

e The actions that we must all take to promote the welfare of children and protect them from harm.
Adhering to the multi-agency systems, processes and arrangements in place to ensure that all children in
Sandwell can be protected from abuse and maltreatment.

Abiding with the agreed robust structures and pathways for preventing harm to children’s health or
development.

Utilising the available provisions to ensure children of all ages, from all backgrounds and abilities have equal
opportunities to grow up within provisions of safe and effective care.

Being proactive, skilled and confident to recognise the early signs that children are in need of help, support
and/or protection and take action to enable all children and young people to have the best possible
outcomes.

The SCSP Structure
Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership (SCSP) was established in April 2019 to ensure effective
arrangements for ‘Safeguarding’ as is described above. The leadership functions sit within the auspices of 4
Statutory Safeguarding Partners, namely:

* Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council (SMBC)

* West Midlands Police (WMP)

* NHS Black Country Integrated Care Board (ICB) (formerly CCG); and

» Sandwell Children’s Trust (SCT) as a 4th partner, hosting the provision of Children’s Social Care services in

Sandwell.
These agencies as named, working in
collaboration with other agencies, have
agreed the local structures and MASA
required to respond to the local
safeguarding needs of the child population S,
in Sandwell. o, e, Sandwall Children’s
e Safeguarding
et Parinership

The Safeguarding Leads have statutory [ A -
responsibilities for setting the priorities for Y
the SCSP, agreeing its budget,
contributions and resources. Its prime role
is to ensure robust local multi agency
arrangements exist to safeguard and
promote the welfare of all children in
Sandwell, particularly those at the greatest
need of help and/or protection from the
actions or inaction of other people.

Page 60



https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/images/downloads/ToR-constitution-docs/Children_and_Social_Work_Act_2017.pdf
https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/images/downloads/ToR-constitution-docs/Children_and_Social_Work_Act_2017.pdf

The SCSP has a 3-tiered structure comprising of the SCSP main board where all four Strategic Leads join
together on a bi-monthly basis to include Professional Advisors, a Local Council Member and named relevant
partners from Education and Sandwell Community and Voluntary Organisations (SCVO). An Independent
Scrutineer as is named in Statutory guidance attends this ‘top-tier’, where meetings are led/facilitated by an
Independent Chair.

In addition to routine meetings, four extraordinary/exceptions meetings were arranged during the reporting
year 22/23 to include the four safeguarding leads, the ‘Independent Chair’ and Business Manager only.

In addition to the meetings alluded to above, the SCSP Chair, Independent Scrutineer and Business Manager
meet on a bi-monthly basis to consider on-going strategic safeguarding priorities and operational matters
arising that may impact on the delivery of effective multi agency working, and therefore to be directed to the
SCSP agenda for further deliberation.

The SCSP Chair and Business Manager represented the SCSP at a 5+ allied board of partnerships, including the
Safeguarding Adult Board, Community Safety Partnership, Health and Wellbeing Board, Children and Families
Strategic Partnership and the Domestic Abuse Strategic Partnership, bringing to the attention of the SCSP any
safeguarding initiatives undertaken by these bodies as well as any issues emergent in other portfolio areas.

The SCSP reviews its structure each year, with the most recent being in January 2022 when the governance
and reporting processes of the reference and subgroups were refreshed and reinforced to ensure a clear line
of sight and improved monitoring of effective delivery of its core functions and priorities.

The SCSP expects all organisations named,(and those who are not named in the structure however do come
in to contact and/or provide services to children and families in the line of their duties) to cooperate with the
local MASA[1] and act as a ‘Relevant Partner’ to collaborate with the SCSP, particularly as they may have
duties under section 10 and/or section 11 of the Children Act 2004. A list of relevant agencies is set out in: The
Child Safeguarding Practice Review and Relevant Agency (England) Regulations 2018

The structure illustrated aids the SCSP to organise its Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements (MASA) to
support and enable local organisations and agencies to work together in a system whereby:
* Children are safeguarded, and their welfare promoted.
* Partner organisations and agencies collaborate, share, and co-own the vision for how to achieve improved
outcomes for vulnerable children.
Organisations and agencies challenge appropriately and hold one another to account effectively.
There is early identification and analysis of new safeguarding issues and emerging threats.
Learning is promoted and embedded in a way that local services for children and families can become
more reflective and implement changes to practice.
Information is shared effectively to facilitate more accurate and timely decision making for children and
families.

SCSP Vision and Priorities for 2022 /2023

The 2021 SCSP MASA as publicised articulates the collective vision and priority areas of focus for three years
with the flexibility to add and amend the delivery plans on a yearly basis.

The SCSP vision born from consultation with the workforce and feedback from children and young people
living in Sandwell underpins the MASA and as such is identifiable across all agencies who have individually and
collectively committed to:

“Our vision is for all children to be safe at home and in their communities, where they are loved, cared for and
have the stability to grow healthily and to achieve their ambition”

[1] h_ttps://www.sﬁgﬂge%@p;l&rg.uk/wp—content/uploads/2021/08/2021 07_21-Revised-MASA-2-years-
on.pdf



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/789/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/789/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/789/contents/made
https://www.sandwellcsp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/2021_07_21-Revised-MASA-2-years-on.pdf
https://www.sandwellcsp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/2021_07_21-Revised-MASA-2-years-on.pdf

The value statements hinging ‘our vision are as follows: -

WE WILL:
» Pt Children at the heart of  + grengihen
: TW make Sandwel| a #W ‘
for chidren o
.- Nmm learn and mw
inpros Y
Respect s g With
ognise and respond
ively fo differem? _iprervention in
M " %m'mfm? o 1
for Aol ehren ol ond ey

/

- WE ARE GOWG T0 MAKE A DIFFERENCE

22-23 Priorities for the SCSP
* Neglect
* Exploitation,
 Early Help (from 2021)

Additional areas identified and elevated as themed areas for improvement during 2022 —23 include:
Focus on Front Door, Early Help and the responsibilities of agencies.
Refreshing and strengthening the threshold guidance.
Under 1s and injuries in non-mobile babies: this includes activities to increase awareness of the role of
Sandwell Unborn Baby Network (SUBN) in identifying concerns ‘early’ and applying appropriate
preventative support.
Creating a culturally competent workforce.
Increased engagement with voluntary, community and faith-based organisations.
Better engagement with fathers and significant others.
Emotional wellbeing of children and young people.
Responding to regional and national reviews.

The role and functions for LSCPs are further defined in the statutory guidance Working Together 2018, within
which there is a requirement for safeguarding partners to publish a report at least once in every twelve-
month period detailing the partnership activities undertaken during the year. At a local level, this means:
What the SCSP have done during 22/23 because of the arrangements, including in relation to Child
Safeguarding Practice Reviews, and how effective these arrangements have been in practice.
The priorities for the report period and what activities took place to take forward these priorities.
Evidence of the impact of the work of the safeguarding partners and relevant agencies, including training
and the impact on practice for improved outcomes for children and families, from Early Help to children
in care and care leavers.
Any resulting improvements from activities (including from Rapid Reviews and Local or National Child
Safeguarding Practice Reviews)
The scrutiny arrangements in place and how successful they have been to support the MASA
The role, visibility and voice of children and families in the safeguarding activities.

While the fundamental purpose of this report is to depict the work undertaken by the SCSP over the last 12
montbhs, it is important to ‘set the scene’ and give a sense of Sandwell, the demographics, the population and
the child populat cessing and receiving services, including Multi-Agency Early Help and Statutory Social
Care support over reporting period.



https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/images/downloads/ToR-constitution-docs/Working_Together_2018.pdf

2. SANDWELL CHILD POPULATION

Sandwell is an urban area lying in the centre of the
West Midlands conurbation, made up of six small
urban towns.

The population of Sandwell is 328,450 people (The
Office for National Statistics 2019), of which
approximately 82,995 are children and young
people under the age of 18 years. This is 25.1% of
the total population in the area. Sandwell is ranked
12th in the most deprived Local Authorities out of
the 317 in England (Indices of Deprivation loD,
2019, Rank of Average Score).

Sandwell is an ethnically diverse borough, with children and young people from minority ethnic groups
accounting for 49% of all children compared with 26.2% in England (0-17 years). The largest minority ethnic
groups of children and young people in the area are of Indian origin (8,246) and Pakistani origin (5,917). 57.1%
of school children are from minority ethnic groups.

The Public Health England (PHE) Child Health Profile (March 2020) stated the Health and Wellbeing of
children in Sandwell is worse than the majority of other areas in England particularly in terms of infant
mortality, teenage pregnancy and child obesity.

25.5% of children aged 16 years were recorded as living in poverty (2016), 2.7% of school pupils had social,
emotional and mental health needs (2018) and 4.3% of young people aged 16 to 18 were not in education,
employment and training.

The proportion of children entitled to free school meals in primary school is 26.3% (the national average is
21.6%); in secondary schools it is 27.6% (the national average is 18.9%). The proportion of children and young
people with English as an additional language in primary school is 32.4% (the national average is 20.9%); in
secondary schools it is 29.2% (the national average is 17.2%).

From what is known and stated above in respect of the child population in Sandwell, it would be expected
that children and young people receiving support from services would be higher than that of many other
local authority areas across England.




29,729 Total Contacts, with 4194 625 open to Strengthening 802 Children in Care
Referrals to MASH Families
367 Multi-Agency Early Help

Assessments -

4048 Early Help
Assessments completed
68 First Time Entrants
into Youth Justice

1574 Child Abuse Crimes

82,995 Children and

641 Children in Need 862 re-referrals to MASH

Young People under 18

a4 , Sandwell Children’s
Safeguarding
‘K Partnership

72.1% Early Help Success
Rate
47% Initial Health
Assessments completed
in timescale

339 Children on Child

Protection Plans -

89.7% Care Plans in
Timescale

1678 Missing Episodes
6.7% subject to second or

subsequent Child
Protection Plan

Page 64




3. VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND SOCIAL CARE POPULATION IN SANDWELL

Contacts and Referrals
29,563 contacts were received to SCT Front Door from 1st April 2022 through to 31st March 2023.
10,581 of those contacts were received from Police, making up 36% of the total, with Education
contacting 4,489 times at 15.2% of the total.
7,010 (23.7%) of the 29,563 contacts had an outcome of action for SCT
4,194 referrals were received by SCT, with 850 of those from Education (20.3%) and 1,436 from Police
(34.2%). This is an average of 350 referrals per month.
3,613 of the 4,194 referrals went to Single Assessment, with a conversion rate of 86.1%.

Domestic Abuse Contacts
* 4,798 Domestic Abuse contacts were received by SCT totalling 16.2% of the contacts received. This is
slightly lower than the previous end of year position which was 16.9%.
e Of the 4,798 Domestic Abuse contacts received, 4,783 of those were from Police (99.7%). Nearly half of
the contacts that are made to SCT from Police are in relation to Domestic Abuse (45.2%).

Missing Children and Episodes

* 1053 young people had a missing episode within the 2022-2023 year. There were 1678 missing episodes
in total, meaning that on average children went missing for 1.6 episodes each. Given the number of
children and young people in Sandwell, there were on average 87 children missing each month at an
average rate of 10 children in every 10,000 going missing for a period of time.
87% of children that went missing received a ‘return home interview’ to discuss why they went missing,
where they had been and to advise of the risks of going missing. 82% of these were completed within 72
hours of the young person returning home.

Child Exploitation and Child Sexual Exploitation

50 children were assessed as being at risk of Child Exploitation by the end of March 2023.

None were assessed as ‘low risk,’ 39 (78%) were assessed as ‘medium risk’ and 9 (18%) were assessed as
‘high risk’.

Of the 50 children at risk of Child Exploitation, 13 were assessed as at risk of Child Sexual Exploitation
(26%).

Contact to Referral/Met Thrashold for E4 Q12022 - 2023 |2 2002 - 202303 2002 - 2023 [ 2022 - 2023
Total Contacts T4 T2 T4 To05
Met Threshold for EM FRE FERT 2060 1RT2

T o

% Met Theeshold for B4 m|  woe]  amss]  new

Children in Need
* At the end of March 2022 there were 641 young people on a Child in Need Plan. This is a rate of 81 young

people in every 10,000 in Sandwell - around 2.5 full classrooms of children.
16.5% of the young people on a Child in Need Plan have been so for 9 months or longer.
341(53%) are male, 285 (44%) are female, with 15 (2%) unborn.
67 young people (10.5%) were identified as having a disability.
50% were White British, 18% from a Mixed ethnic origin, 19% were Asian or Asian British, 9% were Black
or Black British and 5% were from Other Ethnic backgrounds.
175 of the 641 are under 4 years old - 27%.
24 of the 641 are between 5 and 11 years old - 35%.

By Age Range By Gender By Ethnic Description




3. VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND SOCIAL CARE POPULATION IN SANDWELL

Re-Referrals
967 (23%) of the 4,194 referrals received by SCT Front Door over the reporting period were re-referrals. This
is above the West Midlands average (19.1%), the Statistical Neighbour average (20.4%) and the England
average (21.5%).

Number of Refermals Re-referral % in st 12 months

Police Protection Orders

-Police issued 84 Protection orders over 2022-2023 that involved 130 young people.

Initial Child Protection Conferences (ICPC)

* 422 ICPCs were held in the year 2022-2023 and on average 78% of these were held within 15 working
days of the Strategy Discussion. This is below the West Midlands average (85%), below the England
average (83%) and also the Statistical Neighbour average (80.5%).

e 82.5% of ICPCs that were held by SCT resulted in a Child Protection Plan.

Mumber of ICPC's held %% nitial child peotection confesences hedwithin 15 days of the strategy discussion

&5
4
a4
}] a1
P2 kS
o
£ n 5
19
0 I |
12 I
o I

Apeil May June Jul  Aug Sep O MNow Dec ln Feb  Mar
2002 2027 2002 R0F? RMOI2 WOF W@I 32 QP HERI N3 2003

Single Assessments

e 4,244 Single Assessments were completed by SCT over the course of the 2022-2023 year. 3,034 of
these were completed within 45 workings days (65.3%).
3,221 new assessments were completed, with 2,467 of these completed within 45 working days (67.8%).
2,377 initial visits as part of the assessment were completed within 5 working days of the assessment
commencing (56%).
Over the year, 2,583 of the 4,244 assessments (61%) concluded that there was either no further action
required, that it could be stepped down to Early Help, or a referral was made to another agency that was
not social services.

Child Protection Plans
* At the end of March 2023 there were 339 young people on a Child Protection Plan. This is a rate of 39

young people in every 10,000 in Sandwell. This is below the England average of 42.1 young people and
below the Statistical Neighbour average of 52.6.
Over the course of 2022-2023, 344 young people started a Child Protection Plan whilst 399 were
removed from Child Protection Plans (deficit of 55 young people).
70% of these young people have been on a Child Protection Plan for less than 9 months, with 4.7%
being on a plan for longer than 2 years (16 young people).
106 (31%) of these young people have previously been on a Child Protection Plan.
On average@@g6f 612 visits made to young people during 22/23 were within timescale (20 working
days).




* In March 2023, 82% of young people on Child Protection Plans had their plan updated within timescale
(6 months).
* 54% of the young people are male whilst 43% are female. 3% are unborn

Rate of Child Pretection Plams per 10, D00 eomparisan to Statisticsl Nesphbours

fesace o ity M) MNew vs Ended Child Protection plans by Maonth

N I+ 1 w

- AR S 1 S L AR * . 14
I T A

e  Pilchren with 2 NEW CP Plan s Chaldren where CF Plan removed

Children in Care

* At the end of the year 2022-2023 there were 802 Children in Care in Sandwell. That equates to 94
children in every 10,000 in Sandwell. This was below the Statistical Neighbour average of 97.6 and
above the England average of 70.
53% of the young people were male, with 47% female.
53% were White British, 25% from a Mixed ethnic origin, 9% were Asian or Asian British, 10% were Black
or Black British and 3% were from Other Ethnic backgrounds.
63% were between the ages of 5 and 15 years old.
39% were in external foster placements, 17% in internal
foster placements, 19% placed with connected carersand
11% placed at home with parents. The remaining 16% o

o

were in various other placement types. o

Gender of Children in Care at 31st Mar 23

81% of the children in care were assessed as at risk of i

abuse or neglect. -
96.7% of children in care had their review health -

o

i

assessments completed within the past 12 months. o»
On average, 90% of children in care aged O-15 years old

had their care planning completed within timescale, with

91% of them having a single or multiple track plan of permanence at their first LAC review.
94% of children in care had a Personal Education Plan (PEP) completed.

Uik

England 2002 fverage

LADO Referrals
Through the LADO, Sandwell complies with the statutory duty and
Referrals Received to the LADO 2023-2024 manages allegations for people in ‘positions of trust’. The LADO is

: responsible for managing all child protection allegations made against
staff and volunteers who work with children and young people in
Sandwell. This includes Council/SCT staff, staff from partner agencies
and volunteers. Reports on the activity of the LADO are received
annually by members of the SCSP to ensure a full oversight of this
important aspect of the safeguarding systems. The table above
illustrates new referrals received by the LADO by month during the
report period.




Private Fostering Arrangements
At the end of 22/23, the annual report for Private Fostering Arrangements as presented to the SCSP recorded
that there were 13 children who are subject to private fostering arrangements in Sandwell during the period.
This is an increase of 4 from the previous year's (21/22) report which highlighted 9 children who were subject
to these arrangements.

* A&E Admittance of Young People

* 26 young people were seen in A&E in Sandwell for Alcohol misuse.

* 186 young people were seen in A&E in Sandwell for Overdose.

* 42 young people were seen in A&E in Sandwell for Self-Harm

* 50 young people were seen in A&E in Sandwell as a Victim of Assault

Strengthening Families and Multi-Agency Early Help

At the end of 2022-2023 there were 1017 young people open to Multi Agency Early Help and
Strengthening Families Service.
53% of those were Male, 46% Female & 1% Unborn.
58% were White British, 11% Asian or Asian British, 16% from a Mixed Ethnic Group, 8% Black or Black
British, 2% were from Other Ethnic Backgrounds and 5% Information not Obtained.
19% were between the ages of 0-4, 41% between 5-11, 36% between 12-16 and 4% were 17 years+.
Of the young people open to Strengthening Families on 31 March 2023, 97% had a Team Around the
Family (TAF) Meeting within the last 12 weeks. 94% had a family visit within the last two weeks

By Gender By Age Range

s FiTs "
s S0
%
Jow
5 l =
04 5 ERRE L 12163 ire
Child Death during 22/23

Sandwell is a member of the Black Country Child Death Overview Panel (BC CDOP) as an inter-agency
forum set up to conduct reviews for Child Death across the Black Country local authority areas (Sandwell,
Dudley, Walsall and Wolverhampton).

The Child Death Overview Panel has a remit to provide scrutiny of a child’s death for the purpose of: -

(a) identifying any matters of concern affecting the safety and welfare of children relating to the death or
deaths,

(b) to consider any actions or recommendations that can be taken based on a death (or a pattern of deaths)
to identify trends that require a multidisciplinary response.

By Ethnic Description

Deaths Notified in 2022-23

Walsall, 29,

PR 0, During 22/23 there were 128 child deaths notified across the
24, 19% = HowstemeEen - Black Country. Chart 1 (left), provides a breakdown by area,

with Chart 2 below showing a 4-year comparison across the

ik | Dudley . i
. Black Country areas since April 2019.
o 31%

B Sandwell




40 40

35
27 2 3
IE I@: lﬁu‘ I@m

Sandwell Dudley Wolverhampton Walsall Black Country

m2019-20 m2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Chart 2 above shows that in the 3 years preceding 2022-23, Sandwell saw a year on year increase in the
number of child deaths however the total for 2022-23 has remained the same as the previous year.

SANDWELL [charts

E2019-20 =2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

18182020
= 3677 3354 3353 2152 1434

|—1— — — p— p— -

-27 days 28-364 days 1-4 years 5-9 years 10-14 years  15-17 years

Chart 3 presents Sandwell specific data and shows that deaths in babies aged under 28 days have remained

the same as the previous year, whereas there has been a decrease in the number of deaths in the 1-4 years
and 10-14 years age ranges. Deaths in the 5-9 age range have risen by 3, and deaths in adolescents between
the ages of 15-17 years have risen by 1.

Of the 128 deaths notified across the Black Country in 2022-23, 62 have required further scrutiny via a Joint
Agency Response (JAR) meeting, 10 of which were attributed to Sandwell child deaths. From these 10 JAR
meetings, 1 was referred to the SLPR subgroup and led to a Local Child Safeguarding Practice Review.




4. LEADERSHIP FUNCTIONS IN DRIVING THE MASA DURING 22/23

The Structural Arrangements delivering the Safeguarding Functions during 22/23

The SCSP have a number of operational subgroups which focus on particular aspects of its work. Each group
operates to a bespoke terms of reference with multi-agency memberships as pooled from nominated
representatives from key agencies, as well as relevant partners from Education and third sector organisations.
Members of each group have been specifically selected for having a particular knowledge that links them to
the subgroup theme. Delivery plans are agreed annually with the SCSP receiving programme updates at each
meeting.

In addition to the SCSP multi agency subgroups, there are three single agency safeguarding reference groups
that have been established. Sandwell Safeguarding Health Partnership formed by ICB for all the ‘Health’
economy, including commissioners and provider care services, and two reference groups created by the
Local Authority for Education and the voluntary, community and faith-based organisations. These reference
groups have a remit for transporting safeguarding messages, monitoring the effectiveness of single agency
actions and providing reports and assurance to the SCSP on compliance and effectiveness.

Throughout this year's report there are links to YouTube audio form interviews facilitated by young people
with each Safeguarding Partner, Sub and Reference group Chair, as well as the Independent Chair. At the start
of the next section the Independent Chair shares her reflections on the effectiveness of the year's activities
and any improvement work identified.

Leading into the details of activities undertaken across each tier of the SCSP structure to deliver the core
functions, strategic priorities and elevated themes, the next section starts with an account from the
Independent Chair Lesley Hagger responding to a series of questions when interviewed by young people.
This will be followed by accounts taken from two of the four Statutory Safeguarding Partners outlining their
role and what each have done to own, lead and drive forward the MASA over the period.

Activities undertaken to deliver the SCSP MASA during 22/23

The Independent Chair facilitates the SCSP meetings revolving the agenda to constantly seek assurance on
quality and compliance with Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018.

Much of the activities are delivered via subgroups that have been established to concentrate on the core
functions and the agreed priority areas. In addition, across the period, the SCSP have covered a wide span of
safeguarding themes, some of which are

captured here:

Sandwe! Permanent
Strategy

Chid Protection in England:

thid @ Pubication from Natona

Frivate Fostesing Chid Safeguarding Practice

Review Fane

Eafegausng Regugess & I . Scrating Programme

Assylum Seekers from Jash McAlster independent

Ukraine Review of Chidren Soca Partnership  improvement
i 3 Pl

Serutiny repart of Sandwe can i

Unbars Baby Netwark ILACS imdpecton & Ofired HAl Action Flan

[SuBN) feedoack of pannership annuzl Begart Domeste Abuse

warking in Sandwe Local chid safegaurding

MASH Repart Fracion Rupiew

SCSF Qualty Asturande
Framework

Young Pesple ‘Ekerover

On Ene Safety Review

Spoight Review




Here the Independent Chair Lesley Hagger talks to young people about her role which is followed by a
detailed account of the progress made against the themes identified and elevated for improvement during

22/23 from the previous year's annual report.

LEADING - FACILITATING - ENCOURAGING -OWNING - CHALLENGING- LISTENING -

EVALUATING - COMPLYING - SHARING

Therole of the Independent Chairwads closely with the Pastnenhip Manages s
ansure that sgancies discuss, Bpres and review the partnarship arsngamants 5o that
thay meat of lagislation ‘the Children Act 1928 and 2004),
guidance (Working Together 2018), and also ImllyldlMl!Mﬂ!dnnS:nﬂmll

| agree the agenda for the mestings, ensuing that all relevant national, regional and
local gl ank induded 30 that sgencies can undentand need and make plans ta
rESpang

| sttend national and regional meetings and events to ensure that Sancwall iswall-
represented. can contribule io the wider agends, and ensure that we ase intouch ata
local laval

| facilizpte conversations batwesn the sgencies, making sue that there b good
challenge snd support in place betwesn the sgendesso that everyone can work
together snd contribute equally.

if there ne issues of concern: about any sgancy, | escaiate these matiers 10 the most
senior officials within that sgency along with the actions that ace needed and follow
theough until | am sadisfied that they have been sddressed.

| am accouniable io the faur statutory partners for enswing thatat a sirategic level
multi-agency safeguarding smangements represent the views of all pastnen, drive
improvements, and ensure independent challenge to pariners where necessary.

| gmnat Invelved in operational Sctivities and the role of the Independent Chairis
primasily 8 staieglc role. This Includes ansJring that the Pannenhip has tha right
siategies and plans in place to deliver its chjectives and priorities, and that they are
ept updated, relevant, and smbitious, but also achievable

| holp to focus theweek of sub-group meetings through 8 monthly meeting with the:
subsgroup Chain ensuring good join up between the sub-groups, and the full
Parthenship. This ensunes that thesub-groups can focus on tactical matters that dive
eparations improvements, and the fUll Pastnenhip can focus on strategic matten,
whillt Bing B5Fued thal 18ctical mattens $re in hand

The Reference Groups for health, education and tha voluntery sector ersure thel sl of
the work of the Parinenhip is fed back te and considered, andthet they feedbas to
tha full Pastnarship = this makes sure that we sre ‘closing the locp’ srcund
communication with these huge sectors. | athend the Reference Groups onoe each
year, or by request to ensure that they undesstand my role and inow that they can
have diredt contact with me.

The SCSP struciure have separaie [ndependent roles for Chairing the pastnership
meetings and for sarutiny activities, these roles ane quite disting.

The Independent Chair brings the pariners together o ensure thad they ane working
together on all sspects of safeguarding and protecting children and young people.

The Incepencent Soutinger canies cut arange of activities o test the effectivenes of
muiti-sgency srangements, The independent Soutinger then presents their findingsto
the Partnership which indudes comments on whether the safeguarding partners are
providing strong leadership. Adtions are then ag

The independent Chair makes sure that sctions are rallmnup-na, ifinot, holds partners
1o mocount for the actions they need to take by ensuring that these iterna ane induded on
the Actions Log, induding timescales, and on agendas for subsequent meetings

The Independent Chairand the , with th ip M

wer {ogelher 1o make m hat the right activities are taing & la'u!m-nd 8nd 1o sgree an
annual work 5 between it C

Soutineer. and mnPsnmrH\Ip M.wsqtr samatimes focus on the bﬂu way 1o addrass
tricky issues, or where there has not bean encugh progress on particulss metters, and o
agree who will casry out which role or function to move things foraard

there is lots of evidence; see the some of them in the list below:

= Echoals hawve responded to the national report conoeming peer abuse inschools,

= Educaticn Services have checked the placemeant of every child ina residential setting to
ensuae thalrwellan:

= West Midlands Polioe have improved the way that they risge domestic abuse indidents;
Acyte Healih Serices anARE 1o suppent young people
imvalvad in viclant incidenis:

= A new pathway torespond to young people expedendcing or atrisk of exploitation was
introduced;

» A new Strategy bosupport paniner sgendies 1o respond to neghect was introduced;

= A new Early Help Stategy wis inbodused 8nd new websile established 1o halp
prafessionals i find (e Fight senices 1Rat can Supeon tanmilies

= The Partnership has aeated & new post 1
and clubs to make sure they und d
policies and procedures inplace;

= The full Ofstad Insg: @ was Regul P
Inadequate) and plans are in place 1o glmn Good;

= The Ofsted adoplion inspedion wal judged Good.

= All sub=groups are expected 1o evidenoe ways inwhich they are listening and

each cut to smal woluntary organisations.
ibilities mnd have

(18 was. praviously

responding to children's voices and this is repoded into the Partnership;
TI* and finish activities sne set Uﬂ'mﬂ aspecific set of sctions is required io make = Thete Ras BEEn ineased 100Ul &N URDSM BADIES and REn-SCdeMal injuries 1o

imchuding g to matters raised by the Independent Sautinesr, childran undsr one year old, 1ogeiher with tha launch of the ICON sleaming module
nﬂo respond o mrqnlmuam.blnnlnhon of inspection requirsments.

= =ALIALLDANNOGD - ALMIEINETS -ALINKLLNOD -ALMIEY T -ALMEISNOdS3H - ALDIAVLNN OO

The sctivilles mansoned sns manizsred by ma through B reguler mastings sed npor, bt
thank i moce 19 G0 12 iMprows the wiry that imesdt il evidenced, hoewved, th Patsedahip
does huve &0 everanoesing nurmed of cose studies which s good evidenos souroe
Tha Indagendaent Chair has cvanight of Rapgss Revied and Child Saleguarding Peactizs.
Strengtte

- Good sngegement

- Gosdwill

+ Commitman to children and ismalies

- Ganulrs deiine 15 95 tha fght thing

» Highly comgstent Bnd axpelisnoed pecple involved

- Basd nhdenlinding of seed

+ Professicral relationships

- Willingress ts be chalienges

+ Enoal 4 BUSEON. (im0 phaos

Blarriers Challenges

» Time

~ Framnisl ridsus did

« Complex sysiema

- Somatimas bussuoacyred tape

+ Tumaower of iy PE00Iwithin 5ome Bgancies

Fiom the picipaciive ofthe mcmrﬁtnlm#ulhht?ﬂﬁ' & 27 Eralegic pridnity areai o

i i3 and/or aaomedifiment Sved Fe

= Continue the Early Heldp work programmes, and making a stronger link Deteeen asrly help snd
Dur work Brond rikg ot - from initaed igentif caticn of need, thrcugh o sgreeing which agency
will lead, 10 sacuring tha right senvions a1 therighs time, 1o listening to farmilien and chiidren
BBt iMOECE of I D ofeied

lwmcmwllw Framewsod so that the l'.ll‘.minhlp [- L} wlyrﬂhdlht
Slnﬁmlmmwh our peachion. policies and bvelvement

Toteppart and enture Bt B wad satepaaEing fadnent arbcuate and commLnoHE mEIIIe B8
dtageiedag b Ol pemtecron B aenytedy'i reponllity, [ have Brodoted Aewalaie that e
produced mow afber esch Parinership maeiing and sgreed By mie balone being widely ciroslsied
50 1had a1l Bgencies B SREt U to dale with Botivities Bnd pricntes. and feel engaged with the
werk of the Partranhip

| sttand maetings bs 8l 12 prEbdsicasls, velunisen Bnd youmg pecsle SBoulSalegLaRding
ahildren ard th won of e Patneship

g
:
:

Qur wetaite iy » ey vehide i menaging, bul also our press relesses and siatenents.

Tha sub-gnsup Thain provids 8 repert 15 tha Chairs Cerduliation Feram ICTFL whans full
sieumian s Sinoe — ey nole s duses asing Gusitions b enuure Hhat Chais are waring
Eogaihar 10 Sbes Wod i poined Up And Rit-proui e 811 progeRRing in B 3ame dinetticn

Eased on the discusiions at v CCF, the sub-group Chaies peavice o sherier sssuranos repen io
i Pl Parteshi @ kentifying what tiwondng weil. what ness to be kmproved, Bnd whil Boons
will b iaken. | monissr progress agaimitihese aticevia the TOF Adicn Leg

Early Help was added a3 8 ravw priceity in 2022 becsuse of B lange mumbaees of chiltdmn whe
»re in need of hedp and projection whese tamilves need exie ppor to help them to fundion in
the besd inferests of thew children. s imgoriant fo otler this help as esdy a3 possitle w0 that
things don't gt wome for childesn. Agancies need o undeniand the contisuum of ssty halp snd
knew whish servicss are svailstle e Relp iamibes snd chilsren. Thens ste hundreds of sarvices
vl e bn SanchelL but ONENTimEs pIOMIHoABE WEN'L BeEne Of e = 1his i3 why e s
adly N0 WD bE MBS DEEN 11 UD, 0 MBGE 883 10 fnd serviokd thit can halp

Progeush crosd Ie paric. sees & Eaity mlpsn-mgarwn aatablished, Suategy agreed and
lsunchad st Laarsing and developeant o
pracitionens. Dll.lut P mp'-llml.nrldc wnb-n of famibies supporied and sasss imped

lno-nrulrrudpfmly is Hon-Acckdental Injuries to non-mobile babées is & prionty bemawse of

weriber of serious Incidends and deedhs of childnen under one year of , baih nadionally and
Iu-«:-lh- Th lesening from saticus incidents is - pﬂ:lln,n for tha F-—w:pnmml
irdoiingd campasgni arcund Sale Sleaping, ihaken babisi dubitance miluse, and domeitic
abuse. We huve introduced & new mlmngmdulomwpmpmm- b theirwork with
paents ofbabies. Therwis & focus on Abcibve Hed Traums which i e Mo Qommon s
of daath of daiability I babiei Undid oo yair. In this area prograss made indodie leening em

g Engigent. T-minsde brinfings for prafessicraly, ICON tairing, GCPZ ing [1pesfizia
M-gllcll Unizewn Batey Natwod astabliined and chaired By Lesd Midwif, cenpaigns aired o
farnilias mnd whdes public

¢
5
:
z
7
B
=
=
g
2
g
£
2
3
g
&
=
g
:

* = ALINILZANNGD “ALIBRGETS ALINMILNGD 4L MEEN N = AL ISN0d S3H AL MIBYLNMOOO0Y

In addition to the narrative provided by the Independent Chair above, statutory partners have also been
quizzed by young people as to how they have each delivered their leadership functions to safeguard children
during the year. We have included the responses from the following two agency leads in this section of the
report.

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council (SMBC) Membership on SCSP is delegated to the Director of
Children Services, Michael Jarrett. Here https://youtu.be/v3mHXOméd-g Michael talks to young people about
his role as a Statutory Partner and one of the leading members of the SCSP, followed by additional narrative
below.

Page 71



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/v3mHXOm6d-g

The NHS Black Country Integrated Care Board (ICB, formerly CCG) representative for SCSP is delegated to

LEADING - FACILITATING - ENCOURAGING -OWNING -
CHALLENGING- EVALUATING - COMPLYING - SHARING

As the DCS, there is a requirement to work across a range of
partners on all areas of children's senices including, though not
imited to, safeguarding and keeping children safe.

This level of collaboration is key to the delivery of key smgg: ]
priorties outlined in keeping Children Safe which formsthe basis

of safequarding arangemeants for children and young people.

Working collaboratively, there are ongoing opportunitiesto

strengthen practice and improve safeguarding arrangements

(more heads are better than one mentality).

There are shared pronties across the parnership, and | am keen

to work with all sla!mhnlriersa%;tnm_in order to deliver the
best possible outcomes for all including seme of the most

vulnerable.

Work undertaken and keyto improving local practice was

refreshing and s’trsngthal%ngthmasgbuld guidance; continuum

of help and su . including increasing the understanding and
application of the threshold, gaining censent and information
sharing and the role of the 'lead professional’

another area of focus this year was in relation to Domestic Abuse

« On the back of the launch and year on discussions re Early
H:_rwe need to see further partner ownership in relation ta
Early Help and for partners to take on the role of Lead
Professional role to raduce bottlenecks across statutory
SEMCES.

» In response to this pronty | am coordinating 8 meeting with
statutory and strategic leads across the s'gglamw str"gﬂgﬂlsn
the applcga:h and develop a more systemic governance
approach.

In relation to early help, SMBC children's senices are
active partners in shaping partnership working and
addrassing strategic prionties and in terms imasiic
Abuse, outside of the DﬁSP{slratay: partnership) SMBC
children’s senvices has secured funding to rofl o
fnrpe_lramr programmes to address the void left following

he withdrawal of PCC (palice and crme commission)
withdrawal of funding.

| have also ensured that Cabinet .aqdwidergﬂama.nce
has overseen these strategic decisions and Resulting
improvameants

Areas for continued progress is sherﬁ,llaring the work
across practice reviews including building mare resifience
across education senices, and A commissioning of
programmes to address identfied gaps.

Strengths of SCSP includes:

- Partners are very willing to take part - strong partnership
arrangements

Barriers and Challenges are:

Capacity, ownership and accountabifty

The top 2 partnership pronties for 2324

EH — system wide ownership and embedding pf practice

Workforce — addressing the issues arizing from the Care
Rewview and local challenges across all areas of children’s
senices.a

Maria Kilcoyne, the Associated Director for Safeguarding and Partnerships.

Here https://youtu.be/3vHxrKdtBHI, you can listen to Maria’s response to questions posed to her by young

people. Maria has also provided additional commentary as captured below.

e
£y
i3
i3

m
i3
2
£:
£%
‘g‘g
5‘5
£t
28
g2
25
Bl
= ¥
E]
33
Ee
]
gE
=5
iz
i:
£5

=
=
&

‘We participate in the Safeguarding Parinership Meetings delivering on their action
plans. and report regularly on progress, assisting in scrutiny ofhow weld
amAngements are working n Sandwel

\We have a very effective heakh coordination function as part of the Sandwel
Safeguarding Partnership. There is a meeling that meets regularly with all health
partners and it & chairsd by our Designated Nurse forSafeguarding childran,
AsaniCB weuse our NHS contracting process to ensure that safeguarding s at
the heart of heakh delvery and that weare fully aware of the defivery of
safeguarding training and supervision within the organisation providing services fo
children. We have a set of Key Performance lindicators (KFs) that are reguiarly
réported and réviewed at Place and System bvel

‘e are always looking at ways to strengthen communications and use a vanaty of
means currently including newsketiers, seven minute briefings, pod casts elc.

Wie collate thematic leaming from réviews which is disseminated widely,

Uuch of the activities during this year focused on Front Door, Early Help and the
responsibiiies of all agencies.

Clear data from awdt and inspéction that the front door was nol working effectively
and new processes, new MARF intreduced. nfarmation cascaded to al heath
staff. Clear drive on improving the early help offer to familes to assist with this too.
Refreshing and strengthening the threshold guidance; continuum of help and
suppori, including increasing the understanding and appbcation ofthe threshold,
gaining consent and information sharing and the role of the ‘lead professional
Again the inspection and sudit information highlighted this as an area for
improvement and i a great deal of effori has gone into raising awarenass in health,
This is about ensuring familes get suitable help when they need i

-Negleet i an issue in lerms of the effeclivensss in how we déal with neglect
wentified through reviews and has required widescale cascade (focus on use of
validated assessment tools (GCF2) and partner ‘buy in' by developing service plans
which oulling agency response. commit ment io raising awareness and fraining
compliance with senior organisational sign off)

e also have neading the areation of & programme to wpskill the workforoe to be mare
culturally competent,

-Arg E8INg inoreased engagement with voluniany, community and faith-based
erganisations

Mlare engagement with fathers and significant sthen — indude fathens e1cin all
BESEEANG SN0 Q8N thair view and input

O anention is Sirected 12 8 Tocus on Emoteonal wellbeing of childrgn and young mﬂ'f
WOk BOICES Ihe ByEieM 10 Qain thelr voios and Iten 1owhal conosms they have (SHAPE
board Instrumantal], and we have msponded to the SolihullJTAl meant that we reviewed
the ICB owersight of health input to MASH. This resulted in the introdudtion of s clasr
MASH specification and set of KFls :lurianlJEZ—! which has now become part of cur
contracted process. with health providers. This gives us a solid basis on which to neview
MASH pedormance in health and consides fluctualicns in Semand and resouics
requirements in future

We alse reviewsd all supervision arangemants for healih sial weosking within BASH and
s'w Sbout1o ambaned upon 8 review of the MASH spedfication for haalth collasguesto
indude MASH KP15 for health and regularreporting on the MASH dashboard

Sandwell Interface Mesting offers an open forum o discuss cument communication issues
between SCT and Health pariners pastners (i.e.. sysiems and nolifications of mestings]
enabling convenaticns to ensure shalegies putin place are monitoned for their
effectivenes

The Stengihs of the SCSF and Pastnership wording

Multi Agency sommibmient

Regular Muli sgency sudits

Knowing aurseives.

The Bariers /Challengesidentified sre

Wiorddoros! capacity! tumeoves

Deprivaticn impacting on the population.

Toptwo priodities for progress and improvement in the coming year 20724 are:
Communication to undespin abowe aaoss all pariners

Futhet embed SUBN.

= ALMIGIXITH
“ALINNILNGD -ALMIGY - ALMIBISNGAS3Y - ALNISYINNO22Y

Bupijdde piie Ajiea, 50 500 0o Fuld)uap u) (Nans) Homian Aqea uogun ampues o ol
D140 SSAD BME DSEAIIN O 594 Y| 1€ SIPN|IU] 511 SHGE] AIGOW -uou U saganfu] pue s, Japun

“yoddnsoa) ) Ejuaasad oy Eud osdde



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/3vHxrKdtBHI

5. DELIVERING THE CORE FUNCTIONS DURING 22/23

The sections to follow in this year's report covers the activities undertaken to deliver the MASA. The report
will include the progress of each subgroup, as well as an overview of the work undertaken by reference
groups focusing on wellbeing and safeguarding, from early interventions by universal services through to the
ever more specialised services and sometimes statutory provision.

Sandwell Learning from Practice Reviews Subgroup

Working Together 2018 requires the safeguarding partners to make arrangements to review serious child
safeguarding cases and others where there may be learning in order to prevent or reduce the likelihood of
recurrence of similar incidents.

Sandwell Children’s Trust is duty-bound to notify the Department for Education and

OFSTED, and by extension the National Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (NCSPRP) if it knows or
suspects a child has died or been seriously harmed, and abuse or neglect is known or suspected. The SLPR
subgroup (SLPR) carries out reviews of the cases that are notified to NCSPRP and other safeguarding cases
where there has been multiagency involvement which could support learning.

In the year April 2022 to end of March 2023, SLPR have undertaken the following:

MNotifications were made to the NCSPRP
in 2022/23

(SLPR)in 2022/2023 by partners for

consideration

Local Child Safeguarding Practice
Reviews (LCSPR)are waiting
publication (due to ongoing Police
investigations)

Cases were directed to Sandwell
Learning from Practice Reviews Group

: e 3 notifications to the
2 were progressesdtoa LCSPR
i—follcwing a Rapid Review meeting
during 22/2023. See a brief coverage
~ from each child's story as follows:

Page 7



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

Child 1 - a young person over the age of 16 who sustained
serious injuries in an assault in spring 2022, A Serious Incident
notification was made to the regulators within the specified
timescale and the RR panel met on day 10 after receiving the
referral. The decision of RRP was to initiate a Local Child
Safeguarding Practice Review, which the National Panel agreed
with. Key learning themes identified included how information is
usedfanalysed to inform assessments and plans, ce-ordination
of support by multiple agencies, how to successfully engage
young people invelved in criminal activity/exploitation and the
transition between Children's and Adults’ services. The LSCPR
was ratified in February 2023 and remains embargoed due to
competing parallel proceedings.

Child 3 — a child with complex additional needs
under the age of 8 who died suddenly in winter 2022
A Serous Incident notification was made to regulators
within the specified timescale and the RR Panel met
on day 9. The decision of the RRP was to initiate a
thematic LCSPR which the Mational Panel agreed
with. The key themes were the stubborn practice
challenges when intervening in cases of persistent
neglect, and how to safeguard children at risk of or
expenencing neglect who also have complex needs.
The LCSPR remains in progress as of 31/3/23 and is
expected to complete in winter 2023

Child 2 - a baby under the age of 6 months who received serious non-
accidental injuries in summer 2022, A Serious Incident notification was made to
regulators although there were conflicting views on whether the injuries were
inflicted or had a medical cause. The decision of the Rapid Review Panel
(RRP) was that the threshold for a LCSPR was not met, however identified
areas of learning for the Health economy and requested a Tabletop Review.
The National Panel concurred with this decision and the Tabletop Review was
held in January 2023. Key learning focussed on use of routine questions during
antenatal care, working with families who speak EAL and communication
between midwifery and health visiting services.

Rapid Review meetings are held within 15 days of the incident coming to the attention of the safeguarding
partners. They gather facts about the case, identify whether any immediate action is required to secure the

child’s safety, whether there is immediate learning, and whether a local or national Child Safeguarding
Practice Review (CSPR) is warranted.

For each review undertaken there are detailed action plans created and undertaken to address the identified
need. These are monitored quarterly within the SLPR meetings and regular reports on progress are made to
the SCSP. It is the view of the SCSP that LCSPRs are not published until all due processes are concluded to
ensure there is no conflict or influence on other statutory parallel investigations.

More about the work of this group can be heard via this link: https://youtu.be/t5gPzMgnCNc, where young
people speak to the former SLPR subgroup Chair Dez Lambert about how SLPR ensures that serious and
challenging themes are tackled by systematic formal processes and how these feed into professional
practice, training and reflection to better safeguard children in Sandwell.

—

e S D )
= Ly e
Defvenng the S8

& Learming Fom o0 typdd of
reviews it whole remi of

= LEsmg froen al typed of
neviews i the whole remis of

& contitudd o hald Ragid
Revaws and progress CEPRS

 ViE § STEiE pannenNE
Inendanseiepre ensation

* DEwksng B robudt And

MY prosEls Effeenty i this sulgroun

= Mattings are heid bimonthly
wh Imendng agencs seml
5wl 23 ENcepten ST
on emenging leaming and
the eogonf subgroud
It The Termg of

prence wal rafreshed =

Decernber 2022

* The subEroey contondgs 5o
have dedcated support
thigugh the SCSP Budingss
LRS- P
work invotved inciading
tetting agendar, mestingc
i trackng MO,

= Updates on the sctvity of
the subgroup, incsding any
ks chalenges are reported
to Chainy ConsuTation Fonum
ety tvo months with
FENGESEL ey ShEned BE
the figll 5C5P Scard maating
wwery 2 months 10 svidence
the parmerhip  mandate
Lot e

= Commitmént to Wam and
mprave from pesioud chid
safeguandng— cse ane
competed withn trescaie

s CoemmiTTEnT TD EhEN
warming opendy and
Trarspatenty

# 3 chiidegr's cases progressed
0@ Lodcal Chid safeguarding
PrESSE REviEw (1 aEfed @
February 2023, 1 remaing in
Progress to complete in
023-24)

# Davised Spotight Bwview
fPocess to address an
dentfed [ap in ieaming
froen incideety that do not
meet the stabetory threshoid
for 8 CSFR

= Completed 1 Spotight
Rewww and receieed 4 other
cuhieTal, 1af which & nat
mquine any further acton
and 3 which are being

Pag e";m L

1o tmescale

Freegihened ot T
hoid paeans T acount for
their actions and increase:
vaib@ty of ak partoeds

(Fapsd Reviewi/fnge peny
ctions )

* Imgeoved oversgh and

nggpendent sorutny of tha
Fapd Review process
idantfication of repaat
thermes and abity to brng
this 1o the athenticn o SCSF
Wione: dyramic ways of
charing leaming and
EGENTRL MR MNSE
PETE

* BSERINNE EAP D CRAARN'S

caiel whate there was
isaming but statutory
threshoid not met = Spatight
B proceTE

= Continpe &0 buld on and

repeave work weith other
E 40

this subgroup and shapes
every apenda. foan be
mappEd 1 e sotvities af
e W SCIF workTRImE
Emarging isaming fthemes
fram local and raticeal
neviewl €an be destified in
the pudt work underiaken
via GFFA (e[ the national
nEvidw 00 The mutes af
A Labs-tioghed AR
Star Hobsen), the
disproportionality and school
echusions focus of CEB and
The whole deveopng
approach o ﬂl‘m in tha
Taeking Megiect tubgroup.
Whene Taining needs ane
idgnsifd, this informs the
updates io the L&D taining
pregramme, pn of which i
Selveres by The CERR o-
TS 10 SRR ThE LR
iocal leaming from reviews.

this subgroup and shapes
every apenda. ftoan be
fapeed ta e MEvities of
T wieT S0EE aeRrRamE
Emarging lsarming fthimas
fram kocal and rationai
reviews can be idemtified in
the audt work underfaken
via GFFA (e the natonal
Flvidw 050 T murdea of
A Labp-tghed and
Srar haksen|, the
dispropartionality and school
Eochusiond foced of CEB and
The whoig deveiopng
approach to ﬂ'l"ﬂ n tha
Tacking Hegiect fubgroup.
whene Taining needs are
ennifins, this imforms: ther
updates io the LED training
pregramme, par of which s
Sebversd by the CERR O2-
OTEATET 10 SRQPR Tk REST
iocal ieaming from reviews.

a5t nks to emanging
leaming, priodty areas
andfes Betiond taben 85 8
meFu of secomenandaTons.
For mampia, SLPR moeved 3
Che stody on the
impiermantitien of the 100N
proprammy, inked 0 the
subtheme of Pre Birth/work
with ungder 13 and the
RATSAD| PRVl o ROR
BEEGEnty mpries 5D ungar
b1

al farnies arw oflened the
opporiundy o comdribube o
e review process -
unforiunasely during the
year none have agreed o do
i

Tweo laming avens [1C5PR
and 1 Spotight Revienw) used
Bsegrrant weitten “from the
e of the cha” 0 JUppon
practitioners to tes the
world through the chids
EyED PR NS EEUELER,
which was efemve,



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/t5gPzMgnCNc

» Good core membership, attendance and engagement at A D 1- [ VE MA
ELPR and Rapid Reviews 5 . T :
» Positive feedback from Mational Panel on quality of Rapid Tracklng and assurance on fmplemeniatmn of

TEEE e o e g e recommendations/actions from reviews continually
® Ei
S e e e e improves safeguarding systems, practice and processes.
1o activities of all subgroups An example is a change within SCT on how concems are
logged on open children’'s cases — this is a result of

» Clear processes in place from initial incident through to

publication —ahways subject to continual reflection and

wpdating learning from the VS CSPR.
» Spotight Review process

Strengths

= Good Faison with Mational Pane

» Clarity on Chairing in 2023-24

2 e o ) WHAT DIFFERENCE DID WE MAKE?
» Embedding Serous Incident Motification process with i _ - -
partners - ; - Feedback on the quality of Rapid Review minutes
[ EEIE T SR BT E (VT I T E continues to be positive from the National Panel —one
account demands on time for practitioners : i i 5
L 50 o ST O T G TE T was described as ‘comprehensive and concise that was
sensitive in the way it addressed the young person's
experience’ with a ‘clear rationale’ for decision making

Barriers

/Cha”enges Rapid Review processes when there has been achild death

WHAT DIFFERENCE DID WE MAKE?

Feedback from a staff member from a local primary school
after attending the Learning from Practice Reviews training
said the following had been done as a result of learning from
a local CSPR: ‘The school recognised that only teachers and
senior leads were regularly updated on learning from reviews
and safeguarding updates. All other staff received an annual
update in September. It was felt that some staff didn't need
all of the information but on reflection it is important that they
have an understanding of how bad it can be, and it has been
an eye opener for many. A slot at weekly team meetings to
discuss safeqguarding has now been added and all staff are
now involved in team meetings. An audii has been
completed with the school governaor with responsibility for
safeguarding and created an action plan. They now have a
termly meeting to share and update on safeguarding
information — this could be replicated across other schools as

WHAT DIFFERENCE DID WE MAKE?

As a result of learning identified in the YS CSPR,
the Domestic Abuse Strategic Partnership shared
that the following work has been undertaken:
secured funding to support children in the
community, delivery of community events e.g.
Coffee Mornings, development of a DA Matrix for
professionals to use and the funding of two
specialist posts (family support worker/resettiement
worker) to support victims of DA and their children.
Both workers provided a case study to show the
impact of their work. A ‘healthy relationships’
programme for young men has also been funded,
linking to the subtheme of workinag with male carers.

good practice.’

Quality of Practice, Performance and Assurance (QPPA) Subgroup

The QPPA Subgroup seeks to assure and contribute to the development of child safeguarding practice in line
with national and local drivers and strategy. This is achieved by providing healthy challenge and holding
professionals to account with respect to safeguarding children practice.

The group meets on a bi-monthly basis with membership representative of the wide range of agencies working
with children and families across Sandwell. The group is chaired by the Independent Scrutineer which allows for
objectivity and challenge and ensures the joining up of improvement activities. The group also has the support
of a data analyst whose input is vital to support and aid with understanding how well services are keeping
children safe.

As well as consistently monitoring and testing out the quality of practice and performance at the ‘frontline’, the
group seeks assurance via single agency audits, as well as completing our own multi agency audits, which
provides a real overview of good practice and areas for improvement and also tells us about the effectiveness of
safeguarding arrangements in Sandwell.

Updates on the activity of the subgroup, including any risks/challenges, are reported to CCF with headlines
being shared at the full SCSP Board meeting to evidence the partnership mandate being met.

The work of the subgroup is influenced by local, regional and national learning, and this year much of the
activities have arisen from the findings and outcomes of scrutiny activities, areas for improvement as
recommended fr PR&and national reviews including that following the murders of Arthur Labinjo-
Hughes and Star Hobson.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

= Development of the outcames
based CuBlity Afsurince
Framewock [QAF)and
underpinning  impismentation pian

= Fiocus on children and young
peopie’s emoticnal health and
welbeing

= Foous on babies which s 3
strategic pricvity for SCSP. OPPA
meniters an mprovement plan for
the Sandwell Unborm Baby
Mgtwork

= Explored ethnichy of children on
child peotection  plans and chiidren
who are logked after which has fed
1o identification of areas o
wxpiore further

= How chidren and famiies get the
help an the right time was raised in
the Ofsted inspection so QPPA hac
monitored the nember of referals
10 Sanchwed Chidren's Trust, how
many ane appropriate and how
many parents knéw the referal
was being made

= Megleot 53 prioeity for SCSP the
Eroup has considered new
guidance about school attendance
as low tehool amendance might be
B ety LEn of neghes w raae
awareness of educational neglent
and school amendance being
everyone's busness.

= Development of QAF and
ImpEmERTAtOn  plin

= MUT 3gency caie audt -These
have been determined by the
group fnked to emerging local
tharmes incuding from local and
national case reviews
Single 3gency Budl ISILENCE TOIE
fnks to emerging leaming and
offer aciivities. Agences mist
demonstrate how ther findings
Empact on practice and improve
CUERImEs B W OrPa
annually. Findings have infarmed
future updates e.g. the role of
safeguanding govemars.
compigted Section 11 bapnnial
edit ndoding undertaking 3
survey of practitionsns on some of
the broader MEmes. Key points
drewn from the voics of
practitiones e.f. request for more
face to face leaming opportunit
inciuded; nequest for webinars as
‘snapshots’ of information, the
povotal role of supenvision which
has been identified as key leaming
in other areas of OPPA. The audl
showed assurance of ‘Good”
practice acoss the 19 particpating
AEANCS.
Ferformance dREIET — this has
been imtegral in highlighting good
prectice @nd gaps/areas for
imprEvEment.

= The pAgoing development of 3 ful
pamnésship dETESET hED DEER
ntegral in understanding  more
about the local safeguarding
Endzcape, incuding good pracice
wentfied aswed as oitical areas
of focus for QFFA work and the
wider partnership,

= hiuti and single Bgency awdt work
has identified repeat themes,
which have been identified for
further fooussed attention of the
SC5R

® These has been B revised refeersl
form fer Sandwel Unbom Baby
Netwark

= through the QFPA work, the iocal
nesponse 10 NEEHCT [incuding for
chifdren with dixabiities] has been
riased 1o focus mach wider than
home conditons for example.

» QFPa has also suggested that
there needs 1o be an awareness
FAMINE CAMPEIEN 10 Show how
harmful negiect can be

= There has been a pathway agreed
for how severe o persstent
schogt absence wil be managed

= The 5175 audi idensified the need
for schoal povemar: 1o masitar
hew children are kept safe in
schogis,

» Section 1isurvey identfied the
need for supervision Tamning for
MEREEETT

* Detnded nepars and dacussion
tHkes plcE BTCCF Bnd key
headines/rsks to SLSP.

= Spegific points for
dEcuEFon/Fuppon  reqUest can
be put a5 ecommendations
either CCF or SCSP however
sometimes having endugh time to
explore the fmsves rased 1 3
chalenge.

To date the SCSF doss not receve
aperformance dataset ona
reguinr basi though there ane
pians for thic to happen in 2023-
4.

The leaming from rapid reviews
and local or naticnal revidws
wforms SCSP prodted and the
waork of ORFA & dearly Enked 1
hese peiasites

QFPA has undetaken 3 MACEA t0
ez out whether when referrals
Bbout physical abuse are made o
Sandwed Chidren's Trust by non
prafessionals, they receive an
appropriate  response. Thip was 3
igaming theme in the national
review that ok place following
Star 8nd Arthur's manden
MACFAS always test out haw well
senvices have mvoled
fathers/male carers in their work
and how wed assessments have
understood what e i maly fke
for the chid,

= AT of the work of the subgroup i
undespinned by testing out
whether chidren get the help they
nesd -3 good exampie s the focus
on emotional health and

wettheing

The deep dive Spotight Review
undertaien in comjundtion with
SLPR was strecioned 1o fully
wexplore what e was ke for the
chid in that famdy who was
experiencing  persistent regiect

In March 2023, QFFA considersd
the SHARE servey findings and
have suggested that bullyng
should heve 8 stonger profle in
the work of SC5F a3 this is dieary
very important 1o young people in
Sandwell,

Data means we know the strengths and
challenges of the safeguarding systemin
Sandwell

QPPA helps SCSP to identify important
things that need to change or improve

QPPA have started to have a stronger
focus on understandin?lthe experences of
children from Black and minarity ethnic
backgrounds

Input and attendance of partners is
generally good

The findings of the sul:?omup's work shows
sgnergy with the Mag?ﬂ 122 Ofsted findings
(SCT) as well as endorsing the chosen
priorities of the SCSP

Development of outcomes based QAF
linked to priorities

\arriers /Challe
arriers /Ch;

Some of the challenges identified about the
safequarding system have been known for
| longer than this year. pariners need to get
| better at acting on these chalenges

Agencies need to ﬁes ent their single
agency audits as this will help improve
quality assurance of how effectively
agencies are safeguarding children

Questions regarding the accuracy of some
of the data provided, as well as the
variable provision of namative by agencies

| Fully deli'.rerin%the implementation plan to

| more clearly show the voice of children and

families —td date this is onlyusually

evident should they agree to participate in
FAs

Improvement Activity

Discrepancies in data across different
agencies makes it challenging to
accurately assessthe situation and make
decisions

It can take a long time to resolve issues
that have been identified via QPPA waork.
An example is Ion%term counseliing for
children who have been sexually abused
and another is GPs providing reports for
Child Protection Conferances.

QPPA should ensure it sees more single
agency assurance reporns as per the

Voice of practitioners evident agreed rota

Learning and Development (L&D) Subgroup

The L&D subgroup has a membership drawn together from the full range of statutory and relevant partners who
can drive practice improvement through their own organisations as a result of learning that has been identified
not only from SLPR work and recommendations but from wider sources in research, or the work of national,
regional or local bodies.

The group operates to a clear workplan and priorities which are devolved from the overarching SCSP Priorities
and the aims and steer of the partnership keeps the agenda on track.

The Chair has a direct link to providers of Education, and also delivers from the SCSP training programme on
behalf of the partnership and uses these contact points to hear first-hand some of the issues and challenges
facing frontline practitioners which contribute to ensuring learning is influenced by the voice and skillset needs
of the workforce.

The group is held to account through the Chairs Consultation Forum and the SCSP as well as the individual
members within L&D who_are committed and focused on our deliverables.

Page 76



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

Workforce Development activities addressing the key
Strategic themed priorities and focus areas

22/23 Workplan deliverables

Guidance documents- impact as there is now clear
guidance for partners as to whal training is available
and what they should be completing based on their

job role Review of training offer, this started in 22/23

Governance documents- how L&D work as a group
has been defined to ensure work plan is met,

| communication is taking place to and from partner
agencies, comect representation on subgroup

Charging policy implemented and processes put in
place

Commissioning of high quality trainers to deliver on
| some priority areas, such as hidden men, working
| with resistance, EH training offer.
| Quality assurance {mystery shopper) completed on
| externally commissioned training.

Voice of the child to be more svident across our

however due to change of L&D officer little
gm-grass was made. This has been carned over to

324 where all core training is being reviewed
and redeveloped.

The majority of our courses were run to capacity

Impact evaluation has been difficult to capture,
this as been the same for other L&D groups
across the UK. This is being taken forward in

3/24 with a review of the evaluation process as a
whole and to include case studies that evidence

The leaming offer is regularly updated following
any local or national reviews where partnership
learning has been identified.

Briefing papers were published

Course review completed including neglect
awareness to reflect leamning from activties
Findings of SHAPE survey discussed training
updated accordingly

' training and whilst we started working with SHAPE
to progress this there are still areas of focus to be
maved forward to the next year's workplan.

Impact is demonstrated through delegate feedback
on evaluations

Young peoples take over event of SCSP meeting,
concemns and key points raised discussed and
eaming activities review. This has helped us to
start to plan the next safeguarding today event.

We recognise there is more work to do around
translating this in to training and the shaping of

training during 23/24

impact.

The L&D subgroup have created a training guidance and expectations document in order to support
professionals to identify what training they need to access based on their roles and safeguarding responsibilities.
The training and expectations guidance document underpins the training programme. This is currently in its’
infancy and will require wide dissemination across the partnership in the coming year.

Delivering of the SCSP training programme is undertaken via a combination of a locally well-established cross
partnership training pool and external facilitators. All trainers have been selected for the specialist knowledge of
the subject area, with the vital commodity of being to ensure all trainers are familiar with the local practice and
MASA arrangements.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

p 10 Courses delivered during

Core Working Together — (CWT)

22123 __

Thrashalds

Managing Allegations

Neglect (GCP2)

Exploitation

infro to Early Help

Profassional

Early Help & the Role of the Lead

Hidden Mean

Disguise Compliance: Working with
Resiistance-

Gender Identity -

What difference did training make on Practice?
Feedback and evaluations from courses are
routinely very positive, however this is collected in
the days following a course rather than at a later
stage to truly see the difference being made to
practice. That said, records of knowledge tests
prior to course attendance is in most cases
averaging at 40% whereas post course measures
show increases in knowledge scoring in the upper
90% for every course, with the widest margin
being captured from Hidden Men training where
the quality of the training was rated highly with
91.3% scoring it a 4 or 5 out of 5.Pre-session
knowledge measures scored 23.91% and Post
session at 97.83%.

Hear more about the L&D group here_https://youtu.be/sGOKL8bm80O8 from Lisa Harvey who talks to young

| ICON: ‘Babias cry, vou can copa’

SCSP Leamning from Serious Cases -
| When Will Wa Leamn?

SCSP Module 1 - Childhood Regained:
Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness

| SCSP Medule 2 - Childhood Regained.
County Lines Awaraness

SCSP Module 3 - Childhood Regainad.
Gangs Awarenass

| SCSP Module 4 Childhood Regained:
Knife Crime

| SCSP Neglect Awareness

SCSP Private Fostering Module. under
review)

' SCSP Refresher Level 3 Core Working
Togathar to Safeguard Children and
| Young People-

people about her role as Chair and the activities of the subgroup.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/sG0KL8bm8O8

6. SUBGROUPS FOR PRIORITY AREAS

Tackling Neglect Subgroup
The SCSP have identified Child Neglect as one of its’ priority areas and in doing so have established a
dedicated workstream via a subgroup consisting of a membership from across statutory and relevant agencies

(including Education and the voluntary sector) to deliver on the mandated functions.

The year 22/23 has seen some changes within the membership - the most significant being the chairing
arrangements for the group which up to November 22 was chaired by the Lead Nurse for Safeguarding
(SWBNHS). However, following a resignation due to reduced working hours, the role of chairing was
nominated to the Strategic Lead for Early Help and Partnerships based with SCT as of January 23.

The meetings of the Tackling Neglect subgroup have remained consistent, taking place on a bi-monthly basis,
with set agenda items where progress is monitored against the delivery of the workplan.

The group operates within the parameter of the terms of reference which was reviewed by the group and
approved by the SCSP in March 23.

Here https://youtu.be/5s-91ps7QFM, the former and current Tackling Neglect Chairs, along with the
programme lead, are quizzed by young people about the work of the subgroup.

* Prepare/Prevent/Protect
= LSk 'ChAd's Voice' caie Studes 1o

upderstand the fved experence §nd impect

of negiect on children
» Undertake 3 Training analysis, to

urdestand the deveiopmantal reeds of the

workfonoe,

* update GLF2 training

= |ntoduce 3 Negiedt datmset

® groups and agences u

= negiest T-minute briefing deveiaped to
SRAfE 3CrDEE the parnerchip.

- Gain understanding of what pariners are

doing within their own organsation/senice

1o Tackie negiect

- Continibe o grow the membership ensuring
thar 1 5 representatve of the panmership

* Forge stronger connedions te the werk and
actvities of the Early Melp Pastnership and

other related strategies and prioctes.

® Suppdn the productan af gdance e rAse

awareness of educational megiem and
schoo! attendance being everyone's
business.

= Meeds assessment of Sandwell data and
indicators wene devised and agreed within
subgroup to ceate 3 neglect data set for the
partnership. |ndicators were identified via
paftner contribution and considerston of what
data would suppon subgroup o understand the
Zandwell's landscape of neglec. Leaming from a
CSPR highighted the need for sthnicty being
captured and this was incuded throughout the
planning of the neglect dataset
Refinemesnt of the Unbam baby netwark 1
srengthen the rerponse o famifes requiring
@dditional suppor before prier to 3 baby being
baem.
Sangie agency plant developed o ensure all
partners signed up and comminted to wse of
BasEssrment tools in order to identify neglect at
i1 EArbERT juctare.
Portraying the impact of neglect through the
eyes of chiklren and young pevpie will ensure
practitioners, managers and Stategic Leads have
afirm undenstanding of negiect on chidren and
their abify to thrive nd grow. This will be
achieved threugh Chid Voewres case studees.
champion 3 change in qultere that s necessary o
implement the Early Help stmtegy 1o achiave the
ambition for all practiones 10 provide “the Aght
suppert, ot the dght time, in the dght ploce’ a3
the only mult-agency BpproBch 1o TaCKEng
REZIECT T The EEMHEST ORPOMITY.
Spotight review SRI in refation 10 3@ 'near miss’
re chid negiect was tabled atsubgroup fo shame
learning and connect to the workpln

* mwodinthon of the negiect data set 8 now

vk Bnd recéved regulsdy, il peovides an
opportunity for the group to Bnadys,
interrogated tand bemer understand the
local profie in relaton o chid reglect in
Sardhwedl,

= Full rgvigw of Sandwels Unbom Baby

Metwork and referral pathway
reinforcedand & revised implementation
pan In place.

Partnership case stedies and in particular
health wisiting, and education highlighted
benafits of pactnership working bo impiove
hame condibens and ved epenence of
the chiiid.

Greater refiection on the suniey produce by
Shape has focused the workpfan into aress
such 25 bullying, and the role neglect can
play within this aned.

Strategically Bnked inwork plans with the
Earty Help end Attendance i Everyone
business agenda wil ensure 3 consistent
approdch response to neglec and ensuring
these responses oocur 35 eaddy as possibie
SCSF now have 8 firm Brip on the activity of
the Subgroup and will probe and chalienge
if there s a lack of progress.

SC5P now holding each other to
accountable and will challenge in 3 et
and proactive approach, now ealny signs of
Breaiing down barsers Bnd bRdging Eapln
A positive direction.

* CEPR'SS Spanait reviEwd RAS demanitrated
that there B muti-roncerns Enked o
negiect and how tools or assessment, joimed
wp working, sharing of information is not
consistent within practice. This has led to
eefocus of the workplan  and peicdites
Disproporbonality from CSPR foous in group
and heighted the impamance of ethnicity
datz and Enks wah heightened
vulnerabiies for child who are neglected

* Congidaration of the msponse fo neghect
#.5. 3 GCPZ the fght ol to idently negiect
for Sandwed, f izis how can we strengthen
this
& champion to be considered to get
practitioner refiecting 'S this good enough
for your Chid

* Srategy Refresh over the last 12 months
learning has highiighted some key element
fior negiect and changes across EH need
be visible within stetegy for pracitoner 1o
have most up o grdance

* Focm on dats capture to enable 3 more
QUENSTATIVE rESPONIE 1o NEgiecT and impac
of partnership  activity in this area of work.

* Caze stody/good pracice exampies to be
roigd out & used across the partnership.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/5s-91ps7QFM

Strengths of the Tackling Neglect Group

Increased membership, groupis’
representative of the key
agencies, including early years,
voluntary sector and education. ™

Neglect data recently introduce
providing greater opportunities
and line of sight to areas
requiring improvement and
targeted support directed
accordingly

There is a Partnership committed
to improving its response to
neglect, this is evident by a
dedicated programme lead to
supoort 'Chair and coodinator
the function deliverables.

The Partnership have invested in
an assessmenttool via GCP2to
aid practitioners to better identify
and effectively respondto
neglect as soon as possible to
reduce the likeihood of escalating

Eﬁndweﬂ Children continue to dle at
the hands of neglect

The number of GCP2 assessment tools
completed across the partnership
remain low

Lack of evidence of neglect beaen
tackied within the Early Help space

Ownership and accountability of
pariners to act and intervene o lackle
neglect is not evident

Sustainability plans for families who
have been subject to entrenched
naglect o ensure prograss can be
maintained.

harm and the need for statutory

social care interventions.

A review of the GCP2 tool and the barriers and
direct work with practitioners to understand the basis
for the low usage to aid the response o neglect e.g.
is GCP2 the right tool to identify neglect for
Sandwell?

A champion to be considered to get practitioner
reflecting ‘is this good enough for your child”.

Despite the investment in GCP2, the refreshed
threshold guidance, the improved focus on SUBM,
launch of the Early Help Strategy (March 22,
updated training, and the new eLearming madule o
name a few, the pace of change remains a concern.
Together with the Strategic leads plans are in the
early stages to address the deep rooted practice
issues 'head on’ and a improvement plan will be
implementad and form the workplan for the year
ahead.

Work to understand child neglect and the offer of
support, as well as take up of suppor to 'black and
ethnic minority groups. Earty indicators via the
racently introduced dataset has indicated greater
work is required fo ensure all children able to benefit
from all levels of support at the night fime of need.

Child Exploitation Board (CEB)

The SCSP has made a strategic commitment to tackle all forms of child exploitation and to respond effectively
to emerging themes of abuse.

Through the nominated representatives from across statutory and relevant partners, there is a well-established
and highly committed membership, with meetings taking place bi-monthly. Agenda items are agreed in
advance and progress against the workplan is reviewed at each meeting. The Chair meets with the programme
lead in between these meetings to consider new emerging themes resulting from local, regional and/or national
research, reviews and initiatives. The Chair attends the Chairs Consultation Forum on a bi-monthly basis and is
held to account for delivering the strategic ambitions of the SCSP, as well as to ensure there is the joining of all
subgroup agendas and activities.

More about the work of CEB is captured here: https://youtu.be/zuawipSfWX4where Louise Wright, the chair of
the group is questioned by young people about the work of CEB.

= Child's Voice — presented 3t each mesting by = The recent Ofsted ins showed that = The majarty of what was identified viathe -I!«W:Mwwﬂwtﬂmwhwt

partness, according to the nota. msightful
and doss being learning of how service are
percieived by chidren & young peaple.

* through mondnnng, able 1o evidence
effective SCT intervention for SEN/EHCP
children who are expioited. Foous
repicate this engagement in the Eary Help
space for prevention,

Disproportionality — date and narrative
requined fram each pamner, for exammpie,
poboe’s stop and search data informs us that
maore young black males are stopped  morne
50 than any other ethnic background,

School sackutiond leading TO ncreased
vuinersbiTy - We hEve wimen o the Home
Secrefary 10 request 3 national legislavion
change for schools. We aim to seek that any
child due to be exduded or sent through
Fupd Referal Unit processes would meguine a
muti-agency panel decsion, to ensune all
vulnerabiities and Biues e condidensd.
Early Help Ditectary — IS reviewed and
recutinely wpdated

volurtary organisations and faith groups -
are now represented within CEB - more
work 10 dchieve here

Page 80

pECtion
Expioftation & wed considered, and the
Horizons team are visible for all chidren
where this it requied.
The Sub group workplan captures the
information mentioned above, we contribute
and steer this plan according o our findings.
huiti-agency working & extremaly strong in
the epiotation armna, this remains positive.
CE8 mworking on B new risk MERBEEMENT
oystem for chidren and young people wha
are exploited, meanng these chidren shouid
not be considered a5 child protection. Due o
be ploted in the next 3 — & months.
CEB wad tazked with B thematc review of 3
sefious case review, following B sad fatakry
of an expioited young male. Ore of the
isswes highlighted is the way i which young
biack males are mare prevalent within stap
and searches, school exciusions and not
being offered sarly help. There & much work
10 Bchidve bece
Through the chid voice cases heard, chidren
said CAMHS do not offer a good service, this
was met with CAMHS working on their “Did
not attend’ process to change to "Wasnot
mshf’ which changed work ethos and

revigw of 5C was already @ part of the
weorksirgams theough CES, which 3 why we
were tusted to achatve i revikw, Tha did
hewwevir shine B fght on dupropon onality
with 2 greater focus and aiso supported us
ommunicating with the Home Secremry
relating to the need for national action for
writeria beading o eeclusions from school,
CEB mone of the onfy subgroups which
Behievel child's voice work routingly Bnd tem
tErgets sgainat the findings. As noted abowe,
the mast significant change is haw we
coniributed o the need for the “was nat
brought' palicy within Camms,

Although SCSF i not abie to capnne 3l the
work achieved in CEB, they are weld sighted
on any Atks, Bues and how we 2im 1B
resoive these. The workpian i used
measure activites and progress made
against these. Risks and Fues ane
highfighted 10 SC5P if these cannot be
resolved within CEB however this i a rarity
given the excelient pamnership offer and
contributon to CEB.

gamed buy in for 3 different risk
management (safeguarding] system. Thisisa
beave move, and wil benefit our chidren
sigrificantly. PamBes on the whele will be
worked with rather than done 1.
The focus on shared data means that all
agencies are in 3 position 1o address activity
which s not seen 35 pasitive to chidren and
young pecple.
Chidren and young peopie afe feEn a3
wvictims before They ane teEA aC PEFRETIATON.
community safety and location based
assessments ane cumently being tialed. Cne
focaton bated MILEALMERT hE Deen
undemaken and the leaming from this being
considered.

* Fariners are ng longer viewing removal to
an 35 the answer 0 resoiving explotation,



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/zuawipSfWX4

Robust partner representation

Partner contribution | Mo response received as yet from
Traction of action plan | government in relation to a request

. : | : Prcugress the areas mention as barriers, as well §
Voice of the child work to centralise the standards for school as imrove the links/ relaionship with Community
Trusted with thematic review

|exclusions | _ | Safety andVRU work
: :S'I’.‘.h_00| exclusions data is not readily | further progress with the location based
Risk management process | available | assessments currently being trialled, with the

Key Themes brought to CEB | Painios visod o viovide msainiial outcome and learning learning used to inform our
agenda for assurance and ensure, narrative with theie data 9t work programme going forward
connectivity across work streams | : Strengthen the relationship between CEB and

| More work required to understand | Community safety Partnership work which

| the availability of suppport in the focuses on exploitation across both adult and

| early help space children services.
Better alignment with this is required to ensure
greater understanding, including need and
response, in of all areas of exploitation.

Early Help

In 2021, following a challenge between partners in Sandwell, it became apparent that the threshold for statutory
social care was not clearly understood or duly applied across the partnership. This was evident in the high
numbers of inappropriate Multi-Agency Referral Forms (MARFs) being received at the SCT Front Door with little
or no evidence of activities (Early Help) or support offered prior to seeking statutory interventions.

In line with Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018, local organisations and agencies should have in place
effective ways to identify emerging problems and potential unmet needs of individual children and families.
Local authorities are required to work with organisations and agencies to develop joined-up Early Help services
based on a clear understanding of local needs. This requires all practitioners, including those in universal services
and those providing services to adults with children, to understand their role in identifying emerging problems
and to share information with other practitioners to support early identification and assessment.

As is mandated, SCSP have a published threshold document that was devised following consultation with all
local agencies/organisations. This guidance sets out the local criteria for action in a way that is transparent,
accessible and easily understood. It includes:
* the process for Early Help, multi-agency Early Help and assessment and the type and level of Early Help
services to be provided
* the criteria, including the level of need, for when a concern should be referred to Sandwell Children’s Trust
for assessment, statutory support and intervention.

Sandwell have an established Early Help Partnership (EHP) which is overseen by the SCVO and chaired by the
Chief Executive of a local voluntary sector organisation. The governance of this group aligns to the portfolio of
the Children and Families Strategic Partnership within the local authority.

In response to the challenge posed by partners, the SCSP formally sought evidence of the impact of the work
being undertaken by the EHP to strengthen the Early Help Offer, as well as the understanding and application of
the threshold guidance to prevent inappropriate referrals and escalations for statutory social care services.

A review of the Early Help Offer started in 2021 and a new improvement plan was developed followed by the
launch of a new Early Help Strategy and Implementation plan in 2022

Page 81



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

Early Help for
Sandwell Children
and Families

The SCSP are well sighted on Early Help via quarterly data to the QPPA
subgroup who uses data and intelligence to assess the effectiveness of the
help being provided to children and families, including Early Help.

'--I:‘.I"'_E'I A2 A=A

Throughout 22/23 the activities undertaken to improve Early Help in S e T L
Sandwell have intensified, with weekly events undertaken to take forward @ ok
Early Help as a priority, with some of the work and the evidence base behind @ n the right ploce
the activities and interventions presented below. O b,

Actitiviies & Hawve there been any resulting
ievements during 22/23 improvements from wities
= Promabion of Sandeal

EH
H
Lz
s
3

nasens BE
i
i ff

i
ok

i
i

Throughout the coming year and beyond, the SCSP remain committed to monitoring the pace and progress
of the improvement work being undertaken by the EHP and will continue to seek assurance that there are:
e Clear pathways so that thresholds are understood, consistently applied and that there is effective multi-
agency working in responding to early identified needs
* Evidence of closing the gaps between Early Help and the MASH, establishing broad and consistent
knowledge of what support is available to families at every stage of their journey
* There is a shared understanding of Early Help in Sandwell and the responsibility of every professional to
support early, understand thresholds and work in partnership with families.
» Evidence of effective contributions to the multi-agency response, including early decision-making
across Early Help, Child in Need and Child Protection.
Ultimately, SCSP need to be assured that all staff working with children and families in Sandwell are skilled
to identify and respond to all parents/carers, including those who may have additional needs, to enable
them to participate fully in any assessment process. Families should be offered early help services when
issues affecting their parenting capacity are identified particularly in line with the Child Safeguarding Practice
Review Panel publication: The Myth of Invisible Men.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

7. SAFEGUARDING REFERENCE GROUPS

Community Safeguarding

One of the SCSP's statutory functions is to coommunicate to persons and bodies in Sandwell the need to
safeguard and promote the welfare of children, raising their awareness of how this can best be done and
encouraging them to do so.

The Voluntary and Community Sector services and organisations are named as ‘relevant partners’ within the
SCSP structure and are represented at each meeting by a nominated lead from the umbrella organisation for
Sandwell's Community Voluntary Organisations (SCVO).

Safeguarding communication to the sector is coordinated via the SCVO Safeguarding Reference group,
however following a review in 2021 of the safeguarding needs and required support across the sector, it was
evident that the quantity and quality of the sector was unknown. The report from SCVO to the SCSP prompted
the recruitment of a dedicated post on a fixed-term basis to support the SCVO to better understand the size of
the sector and, in doing so, to raise the profile of the SCSP, build sustainable links between the sector and the
work of the partnership and respond to their Section 11 duties and responsibilities.

During the report period, 4 VCS Safeguarding Reference group meetings have taken place as planned just
before the meetings of the SCSP to ensure information from the sector is reported in a timely manner.

Equally, discussions and communications relevant for the sector, including safeguarding training, is circulated to
community and faith-based organisations via email.

Hear more about the SCVO reference group and the work of the Safeguarding Community Engagement role
here: https://youtu.be/uc]JEnvknmE, from Jon Grant who represents Sandwell's Community Sector and faith-
based organisations.

To uplift the activities and improve the links to the VCS, the role of SCSP Community Engagement

Safeguarding Officer commenced in August 2022 with a clear remit being to support SCVO in building better
links and engagement with voluntary, community and faith-based organisations.

Linking agencies within the voluntary sector with the Early Help Partnership meetings to |

increase the anvleuge on processes for Early Help and social care support,
Linking agencies with the multi-agency leaming and development offer via Sandwell
Ehﬂdren 5 Eﬂfegumdlng F'ﬂrlnersmp

Open the line @ ch communication with all groups, mcludmg faith-based crganisations, who
_have sought support from this role.

Connecting the community and voluntary sector with each other, building networks for
susiained partnership working.

Formed a ‘Sandwell Safeguarding Metwork’ group in January 23, with membership |
represented from faith and voluntary sector organisations across the Borough, The
meetings are held on a monthly basis. Membership has increased each month from 11 in
January 23 up to 33 in March 23.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/ucJJEnvknmE

“Wm wm

i oty

R e
dtaianng o the in

eritleinlin
S

the devalopment of guidance

Hﬁ“ﬂu&ﬂd
&b expeciators

When we really know we are making a difference

KT hank you so much for the \

ﬁ would just like to say that the \

Sandwell Safeguarding Network
(SSN) that you have created is

guidance with the policy. We have
adapted and updated the policies
based on your input and advice. The

information was really helpful as well
as the additional safeguarding map
you have also provided. | can't thank

informative and opens other doors to
working with different organisations
and learning from each other. Well

DONE YOU, great job for giving
everyone round the table these

opportunities to develop this forum’.

Sandwell Safeguarding Health Partnership
Health is one of the 4 Statutory Partners with leading legislative responsibilities for safeguarding children and
promoting their welfare in Sandwell. The Associate Director for Safeguarding and Partnerships NHS Black
Country Integrated Care Board (ICB) represents the health economy who, along with the Designated Nurse,
have delegated authority to:
* speak with authority on behalf of the wider health providers and commissioners
* take decisions on behalf of the representing organisation or agency and commit them on policy, resourcing
and practice matters
hold their own and representing agencies to account on how effectively they deliver their safeguarding
functions, participate and implement the MASA.

Page 84

you enough for taking the time out to
support us with our policies. We are

really grateful’.



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

Sandwell Safeguarding Health Partnership (SSHP) is chaired by the Designated Nurse for Safeguarding within
the ICB and has the structures in place that bring the varying disciplines together on a bi-monthly basis to
discuss and review safeguarding governance arrangements, monitor compliance and effectiveness of the
safeguarding policies, processes and system. It includes consideration of new or revised statutory guidance,
safeguarding risks and emerging themes or concerns, supports the assessment of need, risk and vulnerability
and embeds learning from safeguarding reviews or inquiries in frontline practice.

The SSHP has representation from across the health economy including WMAS and is the conduit between the
partnership and health services, providing a vehicle to escalate strategic issues.

What difference
have been made for
the sector?

Learmng from
reviews improves
health systems and
practice.
Contribution to the
multiagency review of
‘the MASH/Front door
to imprwa
effectiveness and
safeh' of CYP

= The SUBN will

identify early need
and coordinate
\smpurtﬁa improve
ICON messages will
be delivered to all

visitors and GP’s at
relevant touchpomls
to support them i in

coping with a crymg
baby



https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6
https://youtu.be/cxZmJScctuk?si=MdN-d2-suKwcCtQ6

-
=
i
=
Ll
=
@)
o
®)
=
W]
=
=]
.
—
'—
=
Ll
=

8. SCRUTINY ACTIVITY AND REFLECTION

SCRUTINY - CHALLENGE - REVIEW - EVALUATE

There is clear evidence that the local
response to child exploitation has been
informed by local and national learning.

Thereis also evidence that the Partnership
is beginning to explore theimpact of race
and ethnicity | and other social
characteristics) on Sandwell children e.g.
preportion of Blackchildren being
excluded from school

A Multi Agency panel has been established
to oversee the assessment and
safeguarding plans for unborn children for
who there are concerns that they will be
significantly harmed. This work also
includes ensuring that fathers/men are
included in assessments and plans.

STRENGTHS IN PARTNERSHIP

WORKING

Clear priorities - informed by local and
national learning.

Arrangements in place to engage with
schools.

Investmentinaroleto provide
safeguarding advice and guidance to the
voluntary and community sector
-Adequate budget for partnership
business support; including dedicated
analyst capacity.

-CSPRsare published as perthe
reguirements of statutory guidance—
evidencing openness and accountability

BARRIERS & CHALLENGES

- NYND LNIWAOYHAI - ANIIYH TWDILIHD

The need to develop a stronper culture of
shared accountability forthe identification of
level of need; and for earlyhelpto become a
way of working (rather than a service that is
delivered by Strengthening Families

Understanding the systemicfactorsthat
impact on frontline practice and soavoiding an
over-reliance on disseminating leaming to
front line practitioners asthe actionstaken to
implement learning from Rapid Reviews, child
safeguarding practice reviewsand audits

SCSP line of sight to front line practice andthe
experiences of chidren and familes. (Curmenthy
SCSP does not routinely receive performance
reports)

Current arrangements do not secure
engagement with/by Public Health and senior
leaders(Board level)in health providers

30

Scrutineer’'s Top 3 Improvements areas for SCSP during 23/24 '

1.Clarifying the distinct role and responsibilities of the SCSP statutory partners/meeting versus CCF (to enable a
stronger focus on leadership and governance)

2.Enhanced arrangements to collectively agree the responses required to act on Rapid Review and Child
Safeguarding Practice Review learning, plus monitoring of the actions taken.

3.Making the delivery of Early Help a whole system/all agency/every practitioner responsibility (whole family
approach)

Page 86




9. ACTIVITIES OF SIGNIFICANCE TO THE SCSP MASA DURING 22/23

This year's annual report author has identified two areas termed as ‘significant moments’ and have deemed
these to be highly relevant and ‘a must’ to be included in this report. These choices are based on the
involvement, influences and impact on partnership working and safeguarding, and will be influential in shaping
some of the activities of SCSP in the coming year.

Ofsted Inspection May 2022

The first was the outcome of the Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Social Care services delivered via Sandwell
Children’s Trust and the feedback which evaluated the quality and impact of services on children and families in
Sandwell, as per the inspection framework. The inspection included all parts of the continuum of need- Early
Help, Children in Need, Child Protection, Children in Care and Care Leavers. Leadership - both operational and
strategic - across SCT, the council and wider partnership was also examined and graded.

In terms of partnership, key comments included: The areas noted for improvementwere in
the effectiveness of partnership working regarding relation to the quality of practice across
exploitation and missing children- this was noted  the partnership regarding Early Help, the
throughout the inspection. Extracts fromthe final  Front Door and how Domestic Abuseis
draft report include: “Children at risk of exploitation respondedto and managed. The final
andthose who go missing, includingchildrenin report highlights “too many referrals”
care in Sandwell, receive highly effective support  being made that do not meet threshold
from the Horizon team;” and “Multi-agency child for statutory services; “domestic abuse
exploitation meetings are held regularly which notifications” not being pre-screened; and
dynamically assess risk and respond tochanges  “poor quality” referrals. Early help activity
in circumstances for the child.. consequently, risk  acrossthe partnership was also noted
management plans are wellinformed andowned  and the effectiveness of our early help
by all agenciesinvolvedwith the child, reducing strategy is likely to be examined in future

risk for most’ inspections.

7
.
5

Overall, and in the context of its history, the outcome of the inspection undertaken in May 2022 was positive
for Sandwell’s children and families with the judgement and grade awarded being ‘Requires Improvement to be
Good.’ This came on the backend of having received ‘inadequate’ Ofsted grades from full Ofsted Inspections
for over a decade prior to this visit.

The Chief Executive of Sandwell Children’s Trust, Emma Taylor, is the 4th Statutory Partner leading the MASA
as well as providing feedback to SCSP from the Ofsted Inspection of 2022 and monitoring the work arising
from the Inspection for partnership improvements. https://youtu.be/fiYr4Q17HZg, Here Emma speaks to a
group of young people about her role as a member of the SCSP.

SHAPE Takeover October 2022

The second memorable and influential event of 22/23 is taken from the presence of young people during their
takeover of the SCSP meeting in October 2022. The young people in attendance are members of Sandwell
SHAPE, a programme attended by young people designed to listen to children and young people in Sandwell.

The SHAPE Programme organises events, opportunities and consults with young people across Sandwell
throughout the year to ensure children and young people are listened to and able to engage in positive
activities.

To manage the session, the young people delegated a Chair from their group who facilitated the conversations
and focused the meeting on three distinct areas which were of most concern to them with a ‘strong message’
to members of the SCSP across the selected themes.

Page 87



https://youtu.be/fiYr4Q17HZg

should be th thatit can be. The
e sl neads 0 prodeoher




10. SUMMARISING THE WORK OF SCSP DURING 22/23

This year's report for 22/23 covers the activities undertaken by SCSP because of the arrangements, including in
relation to child safeguarding practice reviews. The report demonstrates a high volume of work covered over
the period, with areas of particular strengths and features of effective partnership working. However, there are
areas where there have been little or no progress made despite increased attention, resources and
commitment of partners.

The ‘themed' areas elevated for improved focus from the previous year's report for 21/22 and the activities
undertaken to take forward the ‘key themes’ have been commented on throughout this report and are covered
in some detail by the Independent Chair in section 4 of this report.

There is some evidence to demonstrate the impact of the work undertaken by the safeguarding partners and
relevant agencies, including impact of training on practice for improved outcomes for children and families
from Early Help to Children in Care and Care Leavers. However, it could be argued that on the balance of the
volume of work referenced throughout this report, the evidence of impact is somewhat marginal.

In compiling this report using the areas noted from the guidance produced by the Child Safeguarding Practice
Review Panel to craft and guide the contents, there are examples and accounts in some areas that would
clearly evidence effective safeguarding interactions through the impact of our work in some sections.

There is now a line of sight in receiving data on school exclusions and from West Midlands Police about the
local response to the stop and search of children since the publication of the SC LCSPR. However, we do not
currently request data on strip searches which was suggested to be an area of increased concern after the
publication of the Child Q LSCPR (City and Hackney, London).

A number of key guidance documents have been reviewed, including the threshold guidance which has been
strengthened and updated, as well as other key documents to inform practice such as the Early Help Strategy
(via the Early Help Partnership) and the Child Exploitation Strategy to name a few. Equally relevant to ensure
and maintain clear focus on agreed subgroup deliverables, terms of reference for all sub and reference groups
have been reviewed and updated during this reporting period.

The Multi-Agency Request Form (MARF) was reviewed and strengthened after a series of consultation events
with leaders and practitioners. This was released directly to strategic leads by the Independent Chair with
reinforced messages to ensure the practice expectations by which a request for statutory social care response
will be met is articulated, understood and adhered to at all tiers of the workforce and across all safeguarding
partners.

The scrutiny activity during the period included a review of the response to referrals received in MASH from
non-professionals: this demonstrated and concluded that responses to referral from relatives/public etc are
appropriately triaged. This was added to the scrutiny programme following the tragic murders of Arthur
Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson.

In terms of the challenge made to partners in 2021 regarding the responsibilities for Early Help, though this
theme has received huge investment and commitment from partners, there doesn’t appear to be any tangible
or sustainable improvements made. The feedback from scrutiny activities, the outcome of Rapid Reviews
undertaken and feedback from the latest full Ofsted Inspection have all unravelled the same issues, with
Ofsted citing ‘inappropriate referrals, and little evidence of early help interventions.’ This is by far the most
urgent area for practice improvement for the SCSP to focus on going forward. Within the section that captures
the work of all sub and reference groups, all have alluded to ‘Early Help’ as an area for improvement. With this,
partners will need to consider what needs to be done differently to make the required improvements in the
year ahead.




The Independent Scrutineer has made reference to feedback provided to safeguarding partners in 2021 that
was also uncovered some 12 months later during the Ofsted Inspection in 2022, which raises a question as to
how the SCSP responds to systems, performance and practice messages and recommendations for
improvements. This does steer towards a need for leaders to review the existing structures and strategic
arrangements to respond to recommendations, including a seamless line of sight to monitor progress and act
in a timely manner.

Reference has already been made to the volume of activities undertaken during the reporting year versus the
impact on practice, however this again does feature within the feedback received from the Scrutineer who cites
the need for leaders to understand the systemic factors that impact on frontline practice and not rely solely on
disseminating learning to front line practitioners as the action taken to implement learning from all types of
reviews and audits. There is a need for leaders to develop a stronger culture of shared accountability and
collectively ‘own’ their improvement activities via enhanced arrangements that place them at the forefront for
driving the MASA. This will include revisiting and strengthening the existing structures and reaffirming the
distinct roles and responsibilities of the SCSP statutory partners to enable a strong and responsive leadership.

Going forward into 23/24, the areas of focus remain unchanged from what was agreed in the previous year’s
(21/22) report. This is not due to making no traction, but more about allowing ample time for changes to be
embedded to take effect to be able to evidence meaningful impact that can be attributed to the changes
made.




11. IMPROVEMENT ACTIVITIES AND DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR 23/24

Early Help and Prevention - interventions through a range of cohesive and coordinated universal and
specialist services at the earliest opportunity to ensure that needs are met. This has to go hand in hand with
increasing the understanding and application of the threshold, gaining consent, information sharing and the
role of the lead professional.

Focus on the Front Door and MASH arrangements.

Neglect — on every level from understanding to responding. This includes a review of the GCP2
standardised tool and agreed approach to support all practitioners in their responses to neglect. This is
under-utilised and there is no evidence that this tool has improved or aided practitioners to tackle neglect
in Sandwell since it was introduced in 2018. The GCP2 will need to be reviewed for its’ suitability.
Exploitation — a focus on early identification and implementation of tools and strategies to prevent
escalation to statutory services and/or the risk of further harm

Strengthen the connectivity from strategic leads to the frontline by developing a communication strategy
to ensure there are effective engagement channels to reach entire workforces who, in their line of work, are
in contact with children and families to ensure that safeguarding systems are robust and effective

The voice and lived experiences of children and families accessing services needs to be strengthened. This
extends to progressing the areas of most concern to young people in Sandwell and feedback received in
the ‘takeover’ event referenced in this report

A review of the leadership and governance structures which oversees and underpins the MASA. The SCSP
needs to have a clearer line of sight and be better positioned to steer the MASA to be effective.

Themed areas
* Increase the profile and purpose of Sandwell Unborn Baby Network (SUBN) to assist in identifying
concerns ‘early’ and applying appropriate preventative support
e The SC LCSPR sought to understand whether black and other ethnic groups are given equal/timely access
to services, including and particularly Early Help support, for the purposes of reducing risks to and
intervention for statutory interventions

e Afocus on timely implementation of actions arising from reviews, including from MACFAs, Rapid Reviews
and Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews
 Continue to build sustainable relationships with voluntary, community and faith-based organisations.




12. GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A&E - Accident and Emergency

BC CDOP - Black Country Child Death Overview Panel
CAMHS — Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service
CCF — Chairs Consultation Forum

CCG - Clinical Commissioning Group

CEB - Child Exploitation Board

CIN — Child in Need

CSPR — Child Safeguarding Practice Review

DA — Domestic Abuse

DASP — Domestic Abuse Strategic Partnership

EH — Early Help

EHCP — Education, Health and Care Plan

EHP — Early Help Partnership

GCP2 — Graded Care Profile

GP — General Practitioner

ICB — NHS Black Country Integrated Care Board

ICON — Infant Crying is OK — Never shake the baby

ICPC — Initial Child Protection Conference

loD - Indices of Deprivation

JAR — Joint Agency Response

JTAI —Joint Target Area Inspection

L&D - Learning and Development

LADO - Local Authority Designated Officer

LCSP — Local Children’s Safeguarding Partnership

LCSPR - Local Child Safeguarding Practice Review
MACFA- Multi Agency Case File Audit

MARF — Multi Agency Request Form (previously Multi Agency Referral Form)
MASA — Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements

MASH - Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub

NAI — Non-Accidental Injury

NCSPRP - National Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel
OFSTED - Office for Standards in Education, Childrens Services and Skills
PEP- Personal Education Plan

QAF- Quality Assurance Framework

QPPA - Quality of Practice, Performance and Assurance
SCR — Serious Case Review

SCSP — Sandwell Children’s Safeguarding Partnership

SCT — Sandwell Children’s Trust

SCVO - Sandwell Community and Voluntary Organisations
SHAPE - Children in Sandwell want to be: Safe, Healthy, to Achieve, and have Positive Experiences
SLPR — Sandwell Learning from Practice Reviews

SSHP — Sandwell Safeguarding Health Partnership

SUBN — Sandwell Unborn Baby Network

SWBNHS - Sandwell West Birmingham NHS

TAF — Team Around the Family

TED - Tell, Explain, Describe

TN — Tackling Neglect

VCS — Voluntary Community Sector

WMP — West Midlands Police

WMAS — West Midlands Ambulance Service

Page 92




INDEPENDENT SCRUTINY OF SCSP ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Statutory guidance requires the four statutory safeguarding partners (which for the period covered by this
report are Local Authority Chief Executive, Sandwell Children Trust Chief Executive, Chief Constable of the
local Police Force and Accountable Officer, Clinical Commissioning Group superseded by Chief Nurse,
Integrated Care Board (with effect from July 2022) or their delegated representative) to make arrangements for
independent scrutiny of the yearly report they are required to publish.

In my roles as Chairperson of Quality of Practice, Performance and Assurance (QPPA) group and Independent
Scrutineer, | have contributed to the content of SCSP Annual Report 2022-23. The activity undertaken in my
independent scrutineer capacity, along with my reflections on the strengths and barriers and challenges of the
safeguarding partnership arrangements, are detailed at Page 34.The reader will note that the activity | have
undertaken includes direct involvement in the arrangements to learn from serious child safeguarding cases and
front-line practice as required by statutory guidance.

Based on my involvement in the safeguarding partnership arrangements, | consider that the report is an
accurate representation of the work undertaken by partner agencies and associated accomplishments.
Furthermore, | consider the safeguarding partnership to be self-aware and to use data and local and national
learning to determine its priorities. The report details the ‘stubborn’ challenges that partner agencies have
identified as adversely impacting upon the provision of help and support and/or the safety and wellbeing of
children and young people in Sandwell.

The extent of these challenges is more understood than at the start of the reporting period; learning from the
National Panel endorses the important role that leaders play in creating the conditions for good safeguarding
practice and outcomes to flourish. The recognition of the need to do more to improve the effectiveness and
evidence the impact of the work of the safeguarding partnership should be considered a reflection of the
commitment of statutory partners to provide strong leadership.

The ambition of the safeguarding partnership is to create a strength based, preventive whole system approach
to delivering help and support to children and families and the report concludes by setting out the direction of
travel for 23-24. There is an emerging understanding of the experiences and outcomes for children from black
and minority ethnic backgrounds and the differential experiences they have compared to their white
counterparts. This data, along with other socio-economic data, will need to inform the work of the safeguarding
partnership to tackle disadvantage and disparity that children and families experience in Sandwell.

The safeguarding partners recognise that to deliver their ambition there is a need to drive cultural and practice
changes. The planned review of the structural arrangements of the safeguarding partnership will support this
work. The forthcoming revisions to statutory guidance along with the Government response to the
independent Review of Children’s Social Care, the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel's inquiry into the
murders Star Hobson and Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and the Competition and markets Authority’s study of the
children’s social care market will also serve as enablers. The greatest enabler will of course be a shared and
relentless focus on doing the very best for every child in the borough.

A final, but very important comment from me; in whatever role you have played, thank you for your
contribution to safeguarding children and young people during 2022-23.

Very best wishes
Liz Murphy
Independent Scrutineer, Sandwell Children Safeguarding Partnership




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

::: Sandwell

Metropolitan Borough Council

Report to Children’s Services and Education

Scrutiny Board

25 March 2024

Subject: Tracking and Monitoring of Scrutiny Recommendations
Director: Assistant Chief Executive

James McLaughlin
Contact Officer: Connor Robinson

Democratic Services Officer

Connorl robinson@sandwell.gov.uk

1 Recommendations

1.1 That the Board notes the responses to the recommendations since the
Board’s last meeting.

1.2 That the Board notes the progress on implementation of those
recommendations.

1.3 That the Board determines what action it wishes to take where progress
Is unsatisfactory.

1.4 That the Board determines which actions/recommendations no longer
require monitoring.

2 Reasons for Recommendations

2.1 To facilitate the effective monitoring of progress on responses to and
press with implementation of recommendations made by the Board and

identify where further action is required.

2.2 Effective monitoring of recommendations facilitates the evaluation of the
impact of the scrutiny function overall.

200600 *

Pa@ iR

o)

| =

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM



mailto:Connor1_robinson@sandwell.gov.uk

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?

Best start in life for children | The scrutiny function supports

and young people all of the objectives of the
Corporate Plan by seeking to
People live well and age improve services for the people
well of Sandwell. It does this by
influencing the policies and
Strong resilient decisions made by the Council
communities and other organisations

involved in delivering public
Quality homes in thriving services.
neighbourhoods

Effective monitoring of

A strong and inclusive recommendations made
economy supports this and allows
scrutiny to evaluate is impact.

A connected and
accessible Sandwell

4 Context and Key Issues

4.1 The attached Appendix details the responses to actions identified and/or
recommendations made by the scrutiny function and progress on the
implementation of those previously approved.

& \
N sox 0% =)

ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




5 Implications

Resources: Any resources implications arising from scrutiny
activity are considered as required by the appropriate
director or cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific resource implications for the Board’s
attention are detailed in the Appendix.

Legal and The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out
Governance: |in Part 1A Section 9 of the Local Government Act
2000.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007 places a duty on the Executive to
respond to Scrutiny recommendations within two
months of receiving them.

NHS service commissioners and providers have a
duty to respond in writing to a report or
recommendation where health scrutiny requests this,
within 28 days of the request. This applies to requests
from individual health scrutiny committees or sub-
committees, from local authorities and from joint
health scrutiny committees or sub-committees.

Risk: Any risk implications arising from scrutiny activity are
considered as required by the appropriate director or
cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific risk implications for the Board’s attention
are detailed in the Appendix.

Equality: Any equality implications arising from scrutiny activity
are considered as required by the appropriate director
or cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific equality implications for the Board’s
attention are detailed in the Appendix.

g

006000 *

PaEe
ONE COUNCIL
ONE TEAM




Health and
Wellbeing:

Any health and wellbeing implications arising from
scrutiny activity are considered as required by the
appropriate director or cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific health and wellbeing implications for the
Board'’s attention are detailed in the Appendix.

Social Value:

Any social value implications arising from scrutiny
activity are considered as required by the appropriate
director or cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific social value implications for the Board’s
attention are detailed in the Appendix.

Climate Any climate change implications arising from scrutiny
Change: activity are considered as required by the appropriate
director or cabinet member/cabinet.

Any specific climate change implications for the
Board'’s attention are detailed in the Appendix.
Corporate Any corporate parenting implications arising from
Parenting: scrutiny activity are considered as required by the
appropriate director or cabinet member/cabinet.
Any specific corporate parenting implications for the
Board'’s attention are detailed in the Appendix.
6 Appendices

Appendix — Tracking and Monitoring Table

None.

’f’ 3
' -
/

1 4

flll ] I?
Page 93 ONE COUNCIL
! ONETEAM

Background Papers

006000 *




66 abed

22 Feb | Scrutiny Following feedback from the Democratic All scrutiny chairs and vice-chairs have been
2023 Engagement | SHAPE Survey and Youth Services asked to consider a workshop.
with Youth Summit. Further consideration
Services would be given to future
SHAPE engagement with children and
Board young people. All scrutiny chairs
and vice-chairs to consider
possible future workshops with
young people.
20 SEND Post- | “that the Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member | Report considered in November 2023.
March 16 Provision | Children and Education give a for Children,
2023 response to the Children’s Young People
Scrutiny Board on his plans to and Education
increase the number of inclusive
apprenticeships offered by the
Council and its contractors”
Impact of That the Chair of the Thrive Democratic Report coming to the January 2024 meeting.
Lockdown on | Board presents a report to the Services
Children and | scrutiny Board outlining its work
Families and the impact of, in relation to
the impact of the pandemic on
students’ mental health and well-
being.
Impact of That representatives of the SEND | Democratic Report scheduled for January 2024 meeting.
Lockdown on | Strategic Board/SEND Services
Children and | Operational Board report to the
Families Board on the services and
support provided to SEND
Impact of That the Chair of the Children’s Democratic Report to be coming to the March 2024
Lockdown on | Services and Education Board Services meeting.

writes to the Chair of the




00T abed

Children and

Corporate Parenting Board to

A workshop had been arranged with young

Families request details of their plans to people to hear challenges and successes.
address the challenges faced by
children in care and care leavers
and to understand how the
pandemic has impacted them and
what has been done to address
this.

Impact of that the Director of Children and Director of The council submitted an application for a

Lockdown on | Education is proactive in Children and Free School earlier this year but the

Children and | considering suitable locations in Education application was unsuccessful.

Families the Borough for specialist sixth- The bid window for subsequent rounds is yet
form free schools which are to be published but will form the basis of the
funded by central government; SEND Transformation Programme.

Impact of that the Council joins the Director of Regular meetings in place with the DfE

Lockdown on | Department for Education’s 1-2-1 | Children and Attendance Advisor Training for staff to be

Children and | attendance mentoring pilot to Education showcased with other Councils as exemplar

Families monitor issues in schools across practice
the Borough.

Impact of that, the Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member | Sandwell is part of the Government’s Priority

Lockdown on | Children and Education pledges | for Children, Education Investment Area along with 23

Children and | to improve and increase the Young People other priority LAs. The programme submission

Families Borough’s educational and Education has been approved by the Minister and the
assessment data in line with the interventions with schools commences in the
national average by 2027, in line spring term 2024. At the end of the
with the aims and objectives of programme, July 2025, the partnership board
Vision 2030; expects an increase in educational attainment

levels to at least national levels if not above.

Impact of that the Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member | The DCS will work with the Cabinet Member

Lockdown on

Children and Education writes to
the Secretary of State for

for Children,

to confirm a letter to the government.




TOT abed

Children and

Education, to request that the

Young People

Families Government actively engages and Education

with education practitioners to

understand the long-term

problems caused by the national

pandemic and prepare

appropriate resources to help

children and young people

recover academically, socially

and psychologically.
Impact of That the Director of Children and | Director of The DfE have provided a range of guidance
Lockdown on | Education encourages and Children and and interventions aimed at closing the
Children and | supports schools in the Borough | Education attainment gap as a result of the pandemic.
Families to provide sports programmes The DCS has shared all these resources

and extracurricular activities to across the sector and school improvement

help children catch up in all areas colleagues are working with schools to

of lost learning and experiences implement interventions as appropriate.

and to improve mental and

physical health;
Impact of that the Director of Children and | Director of The DCS sits on the Joint Executive Group for
Lockdown on | Education reviews the Council’s Children and education providers across Sandwell and has
Children and | partnership working with Education senior leadership representation on all other
Families education providers and the education governance provision.

Sandwell Children’s Trust to Partnership working is integral to these

ensure that actions, outcomes partnerships and the Children’s Trust provides

and best practice work are reports and updates to JEG as required.

shared to ensure we are working

cohesively together.
Impact of That the Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member | A) Created a role within Youth Service to

Lockdown on

Children and Education
investigates ways to connect with

for Children,

develop leadership and mentoring




20T abed

Children and | young people and offer extra Young People opportunities for young people for next 12
Families support, mentoring and and Education months.

encouragement including, but not B) Reviewed and refreshed the youth offer to

limited to:- provide young people with opportunities to

engage in a wide range of activities through

a) establishing a peer mentoring both our core offer and external funding
programme; opportunities including Holiday Activities &

b) encouraging social youth Food, Violence Reduction Partnership,
work, sports, drama, and Adventures Away from Home, West Midlands
outdoor activities; PCC funding and Safer Streets Fund.

c) engaging with local C) The Employment and Skills team continue
businesses to improve the to work with local employers to increase the
number of available numbers of apprenticeships available in the
apprenticeships; borough and are delivering a range of

d) supporting a holistic youth engagement activities such as Accelerate to
services experience which encourage young people to apply
accompanies physical and D) Continue to work in partnership with a
digital offer; range of partners, including the voluntary,

e) supporting and championing community sector, Youth Organisations in
the new Eco Bus with young Uniform West Midlands and Council
people’s involvement. departments to promote and deliver a holistic

youth offer.
E) Young people have been engaged in
developing the specification for 2 x new youth
buses, including developing a brief for the
exterior design and fit out for the interior,
including equipment and activities. A wider
group of young people will be given the
opportunity to vote for the final exterior design.
Impact of that the Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member | Letter has been drafted and will sent in due

Lockdown on

Children and Education writes to
the Secretary of State for

for Children,

course.




€0T abed

Children and
Families

Education, to lobby for recurrent
yearly funding which will allow for
consistent support to address
young people's emotional
wellbeing and (low level) mental
health as we recovery from
COVID and the impact that it
caused, whilst supporting the
Council’'s ambition to improve
academic performance,
socialisation, conversation,
mental health and wellbeing;

Young People
and Education

Impact of
Lockdown on
Children and
Families

That, the Director of Children and
Education works with multi-
agency partners to support,
engage and monitor the stability
within the early years settings;

Director of
Children and
Education

The Lead Early Years Manager for Sandwell
has taken this action forward and works with
all early years provision. The annual
sufficiency assessment is used to identify and
address capacity challenges and to focus on
funding requirements across the sector.




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Apologies for Absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	5 Sandwell Children's Trust Performance Update
	6 Residential Sufficiency and Audit of Planning Applications for Children's Homes
	7 Corporate Parenting Board 12-Month Update
	8 Sandwell Children's Safeguarding Partnership Annual Report 2022/23
	SCSP-Annual-Report-2022-23

	9 Tracking and Monitoring of Scrutiny Recommendations
	Scrutiny Action Tracker


